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1                       PROCEEDINGS

2             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  By the authority vested

3 in me by the Illinois Commerce Commission, I now call

4 Docket No. 13-0476.  This docket was initiated by a

5 petition filed by Ameren Illinois Company d/b/a Ameren

6 Illinois seeking approval of Revenue-Neutral tariff

7 changes related to rate design pursuant to Section

8 16-108.5(e) of the Illinois Public Utilities Act.

9                   May I have the appearances for the

10 record, first on behalf of the petitioner.

11             MR. DEARMONT:  Good morning, Judge.  This

12 is Eric Dearmont on behalf of Ameren Illinois Company,

13 d/b/a Ameren Illinois.  My business address is 1901

14 Choteau Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63166, and my

15 office telephone number is (314) 554-3543.

16             MR. KENNEDY:  Good morning.  Appearing on

17 behalf of Ameren Illinois as well is Christopher T.

18 Kennedy with the law firm Whitt Sturtevant LLP.  My

19 business address is 88 East Broad Street, Suite 1590,

20 Columbus, Ohio 43215.

21             MR. DOSHI:  Good morning, your Honor.

22 Appearing on behalf of the People of the State of

23 Illinois by the Attorney General.  My name is Sameer

24 H. Doshi.  That's spelled S-a-m-e-e-r D-o-s-h-i.  Our
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1 business address is 100 West Randolph Street, 11th

2 Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60601.  My phone number is

3 (312) 814-8496.

4             MR. LANNON:  And appearing on behalf of the

5 Staff of the Illinois Commerce Commission, Mike

6 Lannon, L-a-n-n-o-n, Jim Olivero, O-l-i-v-e-r-o, and

7 Kimberly Swan, 160 -- The Chicago office is 160 North

8 LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60601, and one of

9 them is in this location, whatever that address is.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That's fine.  Others

11 wishing to enter an appearance.

12             MR. ROBERTSON:  Eric Robertson and Ryan

13 Robertson, Lueders, Robertson & Konzen, PO Box 735,

14 1939 Delmar, Granite City, Illinois 62040 on behalf of

15 the Illinois Industrial Energy Consumers.

16             MS. HICKS:  On behalf of the Citizens

17 Utility Board Christine Hicks, 309 West Washington,

18 Suite 800, Chicago, Illinois 60606.

19             MR. FLYNN:  Daniel Flynn appearing on

20 behalf of the Commercial Group.  Address is 600 South

21 Second Street, Suite 102, Springfield, Illinois 62704.

22             MR. JENKINS:  Also on behalf of the

23 Commercial Group, Alan Jenkins, 2265 Roswell Road,

24 Marietta, Georgia 30062.
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1             MR. STREETER:  On behalf of the Grain &

2 Feed Association of Illinois, William Streeter, with

3 the law firm of Hasselberg, Grebe, Snodgrass, Urban &

4 Wentworth.  Our address is 124 S.W. Adams in Peoria,

5 Illinois 61602.

6             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any others

7 wishing to enter an appearance?

8                   (No response.)

9             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Let the record show no

10 response.  This matter comes on for an evidentiary

11 hearing this morning.  Is there anything that the

12 parties wish to discuss before we begin?

13                   (No response.)

14             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Then for the witnesses

15 that are in the room would you all please stand and

16 raise your right hand.

17                   (Oath given.)

18             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.

19             MR. DEARMONT:  Judge, if I may, this is

20 Eric E. Dearmont on behalf of the Company, and

21 although it departs slightly from the schedule, I

22 discussed the issue with Mr. Streeter on behalf of the

23 Grain & Feed Association.  I understand that he would

24 propose to at this stage move in some of his testimony
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1 via affidavit so he may perhaps be excused, and the

2 Company would certainly have no objection to that.

3 That's fine.

4             MR. STREETER:  If I may your Honor, thank

5 you.  At this time the Grain & Feed Association of

6 Illinois would move to admit Exhibit 1.0C, being the

7 corrected direct testimony of Jeffrey Adkisson as well

8 as the attached Exhibit 1.1C. Those exhibits were

9 filed on e-Docket on October 29, 2013.  We would

10 further move to admit Exhibits 1.2, 1.3, and 1.4 being

11 additional exhibits to the direct testimony of Jeffrey

12 Adkisson filed on e-Docket on October 17, 2013.  I

13 would also move to admit the rebuttal testimony of

14 Jeffrey Adkisson being Exhibit 2.0 filed on e-Docket

15 on November 26, 2013, and finally I would move to

16 admit the affidavit of Jeffrey Adkisson, which is

17 Exhibit 3.0 filed on e-Docket on December 10, 2013.

18             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any objections

19 to the GFA exhibits?

20                   (No response.)

21             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing none, GFA

22 Exhibit 1.0C, 1.1C, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 2.0, and 3.0 are

23 admitted into evidence.

24                   (GFA Exhibits 1.0C, 1.1C, 1.2, 1.3,
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1                    1.4, 2.0 and 3.0 admitted.)

2             MR. STREETER:  Thank you, Judge.

3             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you, Mr. Streeter.

4             MR. DEARMONT:  I'm aware of no other

5 preliminary matters.  The Company stands prepared to

6 call its first witness.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Please proceed.

8             MR. DEARMONT:  The Company would call Mr.

9 Ryan K. Schonhoff to the stand.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Schonhoff, you've

11 already been sworn in?

12             MR. SCHONHOFF:  Yes.

13                  *    *    *    *    *

14                    RYAN K. SCHONHOFF,

15 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

16 follows:

17                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

18 QUESTIONS BY MR. DEARMONT:

19        Q.   Good morning, will you please state and

20 spell your name for the record.

21        A.   It's Ryan K. Schonhoff, R-y-a-n K.

22 S-c-h-o-n-h-o-f-f.

23        Q.   By whom are you employed, Mr. Schonhoff,

24 and in what capacity?
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1        A.   Ameren Illinois -- Ameren Illinois Company

2 doing business as Ameren Illinois.  My title is

3 regulatory consultant.  I perform various cost of

4 service studies in rate design matters.

5        Q.   Are you the same Ryan Schonhoff who

6 prepared and caused to be filed on July 22nd, 2013,

7 Ameren Exhibits 2.0 through 2.10 representing your

8 direct testimony and supporting exhibits?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Do you have any corrections to those

11 documents?

12        A.   No.

13        Q.   And did you also prepare and cause to be

14 filed on November 6, 2013, Ameren Exhibits 5.0 through

15 5.5 representing your rebuttal testimony and

16 supporting exhibits?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Do you have any corrections to those

19 documents?

20        A.   I have three corrections.

21        Q.   Okay.  Take the first one.

22        A.   Table of contents, it says IIEC Witness.

23 It should say AG Witness Rubin.  Same correction on

24 page 34, and on page 38, line 763, it simply states
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1 AMI when it should say the AMI plan.

2        Q.   With respect to the correction at or around

3 line 763, can you perhaps read in the corrected

4 sentence or the corrected portion of that sentence so

5 that the transcript is clear.

6        A.   Yes.  The corrected sentence should read,

7 "Any discussions of the benefits of the AMI plan in

8 this proceeding are misplaced."

9        Q.   Thank you.  Do you have any other

10 corrections to your rebuttal testimony or related

11 exhibits?

12        A.   No.

13        Q.   Finally, did you prepare and cause to be

14 filed on December 6, 2013, Ameren Exhibits 8.0 and 8.1

15 representing your surrebuttal testimony and related

16 exhibit?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Do you have any corrections to those

19 documents?

20        A.   No, I do not.

21        Q.   And if asked today the same questions as

22 were contained in your direct, rebuttal, and

23 surrebuttal testimonies, would your answers be the

24 same subject to the corrections that you offered?



38

1        A.   Yes.

2             MR. DEARMONT:  Your Honor, I have no

3 further questions, and I would move for the admission

4 of Ameren Exhibits 2.0 through 2.10, 5.0 through 5.5,

5 and 8.0 and 8.1.

6             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any

7 objections?

8                   (No response.)

9             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I would withhold ruling

10 on admission until after there is cross-examination.

11             MR. DEARMONT:  Certainly.  I tender the

12 witness for cross at this time.

13             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, may I cross-examine

14 the witness?

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You may.

16             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honor.

17                   CROSS-EXAMINATION.

18 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

19        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Schonhoff.

20        A.   Good morning.

21        Q.   My name is Sameer Doshi.  I'm an attorney

22 in the Attorney General's office.  I have a few

23 questions for you about your testimony.  I earlier

24 indicated to the Company that it might take up to 45
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1 minutes, but I think it's going to be a lot less than

2 that.

3             Could you turn, if you don't mind, to your

4 direct testimony, Ameren Exhibit 2.0, at page 22 -- at

5 line 443 on page 22.  You state that, Customer Charges

6 for DS-1 and DS-2 classes were developed with the goal

7 of achieving 50 percent revenue recovery through the

8 fixed bill components.  Do you see that?

9        A.   I do.

10        Q.   And at the bottom of the page on line 451,

11 the question is, why have you chosen 50 percent as the

12 target, and then turning to page 23, your answer is --

13 at the top of page 23 line 452, this target represents

14 a modest movement towards a higher SFV, straight fixed

15 variable, percentage given AIC's current levels.  Do

16 you see that?

17        A.   I do.

18        Q.   May I ask why not pick a different number

19 like 49 or 55?

20        A.   I believe that was the Commonwealth Edison

21 -- There's a proposed order that used 50 percent as a

22 straight fixed variable so that was the rationale to

23 my understanding of that percentage.  Mr. Jones can

24 probably explain it in greater detail around that
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1 issue.

2        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Do you know what aspects

3 of Ameren Illinois's electric business are comparable

4 to Commonwealth Edison's electric distribution

5 business that would make it appropriate to use 50

6 percent figure from ComEd's proceeding?

7             MR. DEARMONT:  Object.  I think that

8 question is a bit vague.  You can answer to the extent

9 you can, but --

10        A.   I was going to ask if you could be more

11 specific to what you're asking.

12 BY MR. DOSHI:

13        Q.   In your testimony you use the 50 percent

14 straight fixed variable value or 50 percent of

15 revenues to be recovered through fixed components

16 value from Commonwealth Edison's proceeding as an

17 appropriate figure for Ameren Illinois.  Why did you

18 -- Why did you choose to look at Commonwealth Edison's

19 fixed components through recovery?

20        A.   I would simply think it's the same

21 jurisdiction in Illinois.  I think that's the simple

22 answer.  It was a percentage that was approved in a

23 prior order --

24        Q.   Okay.
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1        A.   -- in this jurisdiction.

2        Q.   Are you aware that the -- that the

3 component of distribution costs that is fixed for

4 Ameren Illinois is the same as the component of

5 distribution costs that is fixed for Commonwealth

6 Edison?

7        A.   The percentage -- Excuse me.  The

8 percentage corresponds to the amount of a bill that is

9 based on a fixed monthly charge.  So to the extent

10 that -- that there is 50 percent of the bill in

11 Commonwealth Edison's territories based on that 50

12 percent value, the same would hold true for Ameren

13 Illinois that the fixed components that do not vary

14 with demand or energy would be set at the 50 percent.

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Let me interrupt here.

16 Can the people on the phone hear the witness?

17             MS. HICKS:  Yes, he's very soft, but we can

18 hear him.

19             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  How about the

20 microphone, does it work?  No, there's nothing.  Can

21 you speak up a little.

22             THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I can try.

23             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  This will not reach all

24 the way over there.  All right.  Proceed.  Sorry.
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1             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honor.

2 BY MR. DOSHI:

3        Q.   Mr. Schonhoff, as I understand your answer,

4 I think what you were saying is under your proposal,

5 the Company would recover 50 percent of its revenue

6 through fixed bill components as Commonwealth Edison

7 was approved to do in a recent proceeding; is that a

8 correct restatement of what you said?

9        A.   Yes, over the course of several years, not

10 immediately, but yes, that would be the end result.

11        Q.   Thank you.  And my earlier question a

12 couple questions ago was, are you aware that

13 percentage of Ameren Illinois's electric distribution

14 costs that is fixed is the same as the percentage of

15 Commonwealth Edison's electric distribution costs that

16 is fixed?

17             MR. DEARMONT:  I'm going to object to the

18 term fixed as vague and -- and comically ambiguous

19 apparently.  If you could provide some additional

20 clarity around that, it may benefit, perhaps, this

21 discussion.

22             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  The people on the phone,

23 perhaps you could mute your phone.  We're getting some

24 feedback here.  All right.  Proceed.
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1 BY MR. DOSHI:

2        Q.   Mr. Schonhoff, do you have an understanding

3 of the Company's position on the difference between

4 fixed distribution costs and variable distribution

5 costs?

6        A.   Are you specifically talking about straight

7 fixed variable in this context or -- My understanding

8 is that the straight fixed variable rate design would

9 in Ameren's proposal achieve a 50 percent recovery of

10 rates using a fixed component of the bill.  That's the

11 extent of my knowledge on that.

12        Q.   Do you understand that in this proceeding a

13 matter of debate between the parties has been to the

14 extent the Company's electric distribution costs are

15 fixed costs versus variable costs?

16        A.   I do understand there's some debate on that

17 topic.

18        Q.   How would you describe the difference

19 between fixed costs and variable costs in that

20 context?

21             MR. DEARMONT:  I'll object.  I think that

22 calls for hearsay, and it's outside of the scope of

23 Mr. Schonhoff's testimony.  I think any questions of

24 that nature would be more appropriate directed towards
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1 Mr. Jones who is scheduled to testify next.

2             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Do you have a response

3 to the objection?

4             MR. DOSHI:  I'll withdraw the question.

5 BY MR. DOSHI:

6        Q.   Mr. Schonhoff, would it be fair to say that

7 the one and only reason why you chose the 50 percent

8 figure for the percentage of Ameren Illinois's

9 revenues to be recovered through fixed bill components

10 was that the same figure was approved in Commonwealth

11 Edison's recent case and Commonwealth Edison is a

12 large electric utility in the same jurisdiction?

13        A.   I can't say that would be the only reason,

14 but that was certainly one of the reasons.

15        Q.   Okay.  What were -- What was another or

16 other reasons?

17        A.   One thing that comes to mind is just the

18 fact that the cost of service study, the only variable

19 cost -- Back to your question, the only variable cost

20 is the Electric Distribution Tax, and it's my

21 understanding the rest would be a fixed allocation so

22 that would lead more to a straight fixed variable with

23 a higher percentage.

24        Q.   So that --
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1        A.   But again that would be more -- Mr. Jones

2 would probably be able to speak better on that topic,

3 but that's one of the other reasons why I could see

4 that being appropriate.

5        Q.   So that reason that in your view -- in your

6 view most of the Company's costs are fixed led you to

7 believe that a higher percentage of the Company's

8 revenue should be recovered through fixed billing

9 components higher than what is currently being

10 recovered?

11        A.   Again that's one of the reasons.

12        Q.   Okay.  And is it fair to say that the

13 reason you think the 50 percent number precisely is

14 picked because that figure was approved in the recent

15 ComEd proceeding?

16        A.   Again I think that was part of the reason

17 but also the fact that the Company's percentages --

18 current percentages of straight fixed variable were

19 relatively close to that number, the moderation -- the

20 moderation effect seemed appropriate.

21        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, if you turn back to

22 page 22 of your direct testimony, Exhibit 2.0, line

23 446, you state that, movement towards the 50 percent

24 target will be limited to no more than 2.5 percentage
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1 points more than recovery levels of current rates, and

2 I interpret that to mean more than what is currently

3 being recovered through fixed components.  Is that a

4 correct reading of what you said here?

5        A.   To restate that, the two and a half percent

6 refers to the percentage increase in the current

7 straight fixed variable percentage towards the goal of

8 the 50 percent straight fixed variable percentage laid

9 out in that question.

10        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  So is that a limitation

11 of no more than a 2.5 percentage point increase

12 annually?

13        A.   To be specific, it was in each update

14 proceeding.  So to the extent that annually falls in

15 that line of questioning, it would increase by 2.5

16 percent each update proceeding, MAP update proceeding.

17        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  So if we turn to page

18 23, line 456, you state that the percentages -- the

19 current percentages of straight fixed variable

20 recovery levels for the DS-1 and DS-2 rate classes are

21 44.8 percent and 27.2 percent, respectively, and at

22 line 459 you say that, in this proceeding you're

23 proposing increasing those to 47.3 percent, which is

24 2.5 percentages points more than the previous number,
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1 and 29.7 percent, which is 2.5 percentage more than

2 the previous number, respectively.  Is that the

3 correct summary of what you said there?

4        A.   It's close but not exact.

5        Q.   Okay.

6        A.   Nothing will change in this proceeding.

7 The next update -- MAP update proceeding would

8 increase by the two and a half percent stated in

9 testimony.  I would expect the 44.8 percent would be

10 close, but it could be slightly different when we file

11 that update proceeding.

12        Q.   Okay.

13        A.   So just wanted to clarify that --

14        Q.   Okay.

15        A.   -- distinction there.

16        Q.   Thank you.  These would be implemented

17 January 1, 2015, correct?

18        A.   Filing in '14, effective January, '15, yes.

19        Q.   Thank you.

20        A.   That would be the first movement of the

21 straight fixed variable percentage.

22        Q.   Okay.  And would it be the Company's intent

23 to continue to increase these straight fixed variable

24 percentages by 2.5 percentage points in each annual
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1 update going forward until both of those figures reach

2 50 percent?

3        A.   Residential, that is correct.  I'm -- Just

4 bear with me a second.  By residential, I mean DS-1.

5        Q.   Yes.

6        A.   Yes, that is correct.  That would be the

7 goal.

8        Q.   Okay.  So although I understand, as you

9 said a minute ago, that the current percentage of 44.8

10 percent and 27.2 percent might change a bit next year.

11 Would it be fair to say roughly that it will take --

12 it would be in the third annual update starting with

13 the 2014 update when the 50 percent figure is reached

14 for DS-1?

15        A.   I don't believe we've calculated precisely

16 when that would occur.

17        Q.   If the current 44.8 percent still held in

18 2014, although I acknowledge that you said it probably

19 will be slightly different, but if it's still held

20 next year, then in -- according to your plan, on

21 January 1st, 2015, that would increase to 47.3

22 percent, then January 1st, 2016, that would increase

23 to 49.8 percent, then January 1st, 2017, that would

24 increase to 50 percent; would that be fair to say
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1 under your plan?

2        A.   I can agree to that.

3        Q.   Okay.  And for the DS-2 rate class, the

4 current straight-fixed variable value is 27.2 percent.

5 So roughly speaking, it would take around 13 annual

6 updates to -- I'm sorry, that's not right.  It would

7 take -- I think it's nine.  I'm sorry.  It would take

8 roughly around nine annual updates to increase that

9 value to 50 percent, is that roughly correct, from the

10 current 27.2?

11        A.   It's hard to speculate because there will

12 be another rate redesign proceeding after the three

13 years so it's hard to speculate how many years it

14 would take to move that to the 50 percent, but under

15 your example I can agree that if nothing -- if nothing

16 changed, all else equal, subject to check, it would be

17 nine.

18        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

19        A.   Without doing the math.

20        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like to turn to your

21 surrebuttal testimony, Exhibit 8.0.  Can you turn to

22 page 29 surrebuttal testimony.  At line 619 you state

23 that the contested issue between yourself and AG

24 Witness Mr. Rubin is whether AIC should allocate the
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1 non-metering AMI plant costs to its customer classes

2 using a labor allocator as proposed by Mr. Rubin or a

3 customer-related allocator as proposed by AIC.  Is

4 that an accurate summary of your testimony there?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  In your opinion when is

7 it appropriate to allocate plant costs using labor

8 allocator?

9        A.   In the case of general intangible plant,

10 AIC uses the labor allocator because it's essentially

11 a shared function.  It's a -- It's a shared cost that

12 is not easily identifiable and segregable so that the

13 labor allocator provides a good method for that -- for

14 those types of facilities -- investments.

15        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  If you turn to page 30

16 of your surrebuttal, Exhibit 8.0, at line 643, you

17 basically summarize Mr. Rubin's rebuttal testimony.

18 You state that Mr. Rubin identified several functions

19 other than meter reading that he believes the AMI

20 network will perform.  These other functions are:

21 Outage management and response, uncollectible

22 accounts, service disconnection and reconnection,

23 energy efficiency.  Do you see that?

24        A.   I do.
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1        Q.   May I ask, do you agree that the AMI

2 network will perform these functions?

3        A.   I don't have any reason to believe not.

4        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

5        A.   I'm not an expert on the AMI technology,

6 but I can -- I can agree.

7        Q.   Okay.  Has Ameren begun installing

8 non-meter AMI infrastructure yet?

9             MR. DEARMONT:  Object to the extent that

10 calls for speculation, but perhaps Mr. Schonhoff can

11 answer to the extent he can.

12        A.   I can say that that investment is not --

13 that plant is not in service yet.  I know that.

14 BY MR. DOSHI:

15        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And looking at line 645

16 and 646 again, do these -- do these functions that Mr.

17 Rubin identified and you repeated in your testimony,

18 do these functions have benefits for the distribution

19 network as a whole?

20        A.   I think these are more customer benefits.

21 These are all benefits that would essentially -- These

22 are all functions that would essentially benefit

23 customers.

24        Q.   Can you explain why?
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1             MR. DEARMONT:  Object to the extent this

2 calls for speculation.  Mr. Schonhoff has already

3 stated he's not an expert on the benefits of the AMI

4 plan.  I believe specifically in his testimony he

5 argues that this docket should not focus on those

6 methods.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Doshi, would you

8 repeat your question that you asked.

9 BY MR. DOSHI:

10        Q.   My first question was the functions of the

11 AMI network listed at line 645 and 646 of Exhibit 8.0.

12 My question was do you believe these will have

13 benefits for the network as a whole.  Mr. Schonhoff

14 said no, I believe these would benefit customers.  My

15 next question was can you explain why you believe

16 that?

17             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You may answer the

18 question if you can.

19        A.   Sure.  Again I'm not an expert on the AMI,

20 but these all appear to -- service disconnection,

21 service reconnection, these appear to benefit

22 customers.  Energy efficiency is a benefit to

23 customers, so on and so forth.  I could just repeat

24 that for each of these four.  Other than that, I don't
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1 really have a good response for you.

2             MR. DOSHI:  Okay.  Thank you.  Your Honor,

3 that's all my questions for Mr. Schonhoff.

4             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Very well.

5             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.

6             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Anyone else have cross?

8             MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:  Yes, your Honor.

9                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

10 QUESTIONS BY MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:

11        Q.   Good morning.  My name is Ryan Robertson,

12 and I'm one of the attorneys for IIEC, and I just have

13 several questions for you this morning.  We'll keep it

14 short.  I'd like to refer you to your surrebuttal

15 testimony on page 27 lines 582 through 586.

16        A.   582 to 586 I'm there.

17        Q.   Okay.  At that point you state that DS-2

18 class contains both single and three-phase customers

19 whose exact demand allocators were unknown.  That

20 would be correct?

21        A.   That's my understanding.

22        Q.   Is it true that the DS-2 class contains

23 both primary and secondary customers?

24        A.   Can you be more specific about what you
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1 mean by primary and secondary customers?

2        Q.   Well, I guess it would be just customers

3 who take service from both primary and secondary

4 voltages.

5        A.   Yes, that's my understanding.

6        Q.   Okay.  And even though there are both

7 primary and secondary customers, do you currently

8 allocate secondary costs to the DS-2 class?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Okay.  Does that mean the demand allocator

11 used to allocate secondary costs to the DS-2 class

12 already takes into account the separate demands of the

13 primary and secondary customers?

14        A.   I don't think that's correct because the

15 demand allocator is specifically to the voltage level.

16 So to the extent that demand is or is not on the

17 primary or the secondary service level, demands would

18 be allocated accordingly.

19        Q.   Okay.  Would you believe that allocation

20 method is reasonable?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Would you agree that more than 90 percent

23 of secondary customers take single phase service?

24        A.   I can't -- I can't tell you that specific.
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1 I don't know what that percentage is.

2        Q.   Would you say more than 50 percent?

3        A.   I would just be guessing, and I don't want

4 to do that so I can't -- I can't answer that question.

5             MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:  No further questions.

6 Thank you.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.  Mr. Jenkins.

8                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

9 QUESTIONS BY MR. JENKINS:

10        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Schonhoff.  Alan Jenkins

11 for the Commercial Group.

12        A.   Good morning.

13        Q.   If you could turn to your rebuttal

14 testimony, Ameren Exhibit 5.0, page 21.  I'm going to

15 ask you a few questions concerning the rate limiter

16 credit?

17        A.   I'm sorry, page 21?

18        Q.   Yes, sir.  Are you there?

19        A.   I'm there.

20        Q.   Okay.  Are you aware that as far back as

21 the 2000 Ameren rate case, Docket No. 07-0585, the

22 Commercial Group recommended the elimination of the

23 DS-3 and DS-4 rate limiter credit being an unfair

24 burden to other customers?
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1        A.   I don't have any experience with those

2 proceedings.

3        Q.   Would you agree that the issue's been

4 ongoing for some time?

5        A.   That's my understanding, yes.

6        Q.   And your initial position that you outlined

7 at the first two lines of page 21, was it not, was to

8 eliminate the rate limiter credits as a result of this

9 case?

10        A.   Yes, that was the original proposal.

11        Q.   And is that in part because the Commission

12 has indicated in the past that it's committed to

13 eliminating the Rate Limiters at the earliest

14 opportunity?

15        A.   That is my understanding.

16        Q.   Now, you discuss on this page an agreement

17 that Ameren reached with GFA whereby the rate limiter

18 credits would be reduced each of the next three years

19 and set to be eliminated completely by the next rate

20 redesign proceeding.  Do you see that testimony?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Now, when you say the rate limiter credits

23 are set to be eliminated completely by the next rate

24 redesign proceeding, are you suggesting that those
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1 credits might not be eliminated by that time?

2        A.   It is Ameren's proposal that they would be

3 eliminated at that time.

4        Q.   All right.  Let's flesh that out a bit.

5 Ameren's on a three-year rate redesign cycle, isn't

6 it?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   And under that cycle Ameren would file its

9 next rate design proceeding in 2016, right?

10        A.   That makes sense, yes.

11        Q.   Given your statement at line 441, that the

12 rate limiter credit will not be available beginning

13 with the January 2018 billing period, isn't it true

14 rate limiter credits will still be in effect when

15 Ameren files its next rate redesign case in 2016?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   So can you square for me your -- what is

18 your intent by that statement?

19        A.   Yeah, let me please clarify.

20        Q.   Okay.

21        A.   Every three years the Company would

22 presumably file a rate redesign case.  Rates will be

23 -- Effective rates based on cost allocation rate

24 design methodologies in this proceeding will -- will
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1 begin in January of 2015.  It's the Company's

2 expectation that three years from that point beginning

3 with the January 2018 billing period rate limiter

4 credits will not be provided at that time.

5        Q.   Would it be fair to say that you intended

6 to say not necessarily that rate limiter credits would

7 be phased out by the time of the next filing of

8 Ameren's rate design case but by the time rates

9 affected by the next filing went into effect?

10        A.   I think that's a fair statement, yeah.

11        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  If the Commission would

12 reject the agreement that Ameren and GFA have reached,

13 would it still -- would you fall back to your original

14 position that the rate limiter credits should be

15 eliminated from this case?

16        A.   I don't know -- that wasn't -- if the

17 Commission -- Can you repeat the question?

18        Q.   Yeah.  If the Commission rejects the

19 agreement that Ameren and GFA reached that you're

20 describing here, would your position be to fall back

21 to the original position that the rate limiter credit

22 should be eliminated immediately as a result of this

23 proceeding?

24        A.   Yes, I would see no other option.
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1             MR. JENKINS:  Thank you.  Nothing further.

2             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.  Is there any

3 other --

4 BY MR. JENKINS:

5        Q.   Oh, I'm sorry.  I did forget one other.

6 Sorry, your Honor.  I just had a question about

7 primary distribution line costs.  If we could turn to

8 your surrebuttal, Ameren Exhibit 8.0, page 10.  I

9 believe I only have two questions on this.

10             MR. DEARMONT:  I'm sorry.  You said page

11 10?

12 BY MR. JENKINS:

13        Q.   Page 10, yes.  If you look at footnote 7,

14 you're setting up a discussion of your Ameren Exhibit

15 8.0 where you did these charts, and you describe there

16 that you have not included the DS-3 and DS-4 classes

17 for purposes of this illustration because they are

18 irrelevant to your testimony and would unnecessarily

19 complicate the illustration.  I wonder if you could

20 clarify for the record what you meant by that

21 statement.

22        A.   I ran out of space on the page, and overly

23 complicating the document I made -- I could have added

24 other customer classes, but I wasn't drawing any
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1 conclusions about those in my testimony.  So rather

2 than really confuse everybody, I thought it would be

3 more efficient to just show the key points I was

4 trying to make in my written testimony.

5        Q.   So when you say they're irrelevant, what

6 did you mean by that?

7        A.   I didn't mean to state that they're

8 unaffected if that's what you're getting at, that

9 they're just irrelevant to the point I was trying to

10 make with regard to the DS-5 and DS-6 classes.

11             MR. JENKINS:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's

12 all, your Honor.

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.

14             MR. KENNEDY:  Can we ask for five minutes?

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

16             MR. KENNEDY:  Thank you.

17             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  We'll take a five-minute

18 break.

19             (WHEREIN, a break was taken.)

20             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Back on the record.  Mr.

21 Dearmont, do you have any redirect?

22             MR. DEARMONT:  I do, Judge, just a few

23 quick questions.

24                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION
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1 QUESTIONS BY MR. DEARMONT:

2        Q.   Mr. Schonhoff, the attorney for the

3 Commercial Group asked you a few questions about the

4 Company's positions on the applicability or not of the

5 rate limiter credit.  Do you remember that line of

6 questioning?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   To be clear, does the Company continue to

9 support the agreement with the GFA that was

10 memorialized in your testimony?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   In going forward from today, to the best of

13 your knowledge does the Company plan to advocate the

14 treatment of rate limiter credits outlined in your

15 direct testimony?

16             MR. JENKINS:  Objection.  If we could

17 clarify, is that going forward if the agreement is not

18 accepted or just going forward?

19 BY MR. DEARMONT:

20        Q.   Going forward in general.  So I'm not

21 asking you about what would happen if the agreement

22 was not approved.  I'm saying sitting here today to

23 the best of your knowledge does the Company plan to

24 argue that its direct position should be adopted --
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1        A.   No.

2        Q.   -- in this case?

3        A.   No.

4             MR. DEARMONT:  I have no further questions.

5             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Is there any recross?

6                   (No response.)

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  There are no objections

8 to Ameren Exhibits 2.0, 2.1 through 2.10, 5.0, 5.1

9 through 5.5, 8.0, and 8.1.  They are admitted into

10 evidence.

11                   (Ameren Exhibits 2.0, 2.1-2.10,

12                    5.0, 5.1-5.5, 8.0 and 8.1.

13                    admitted.)

14             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.

15             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

16             MR. DEARMONT:  Judge, if I may, is there a

17 need to file any type of corrected or revised version

18 to clean up those two or three points that Mr.

19 Schonhoff discussed, or would it be your intent to

20 just allow the record to be accepted on those issues?

21             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I think it would be

22 helpful if you would just file an errata pointing out

23 what changes need to be made and not refile the entire

24 testimony.
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1             MR. DEARMONT:  Thank you.

2             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you, Mr.

3 Schonhoff.

4             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

5                   (Witness excused.)

6             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Jones, please.  We

7 have rearranged the room in an attempt to make it

8 easier for the people on the phone to hear the

9 witness, and Mr. Robertson has asked if you could

10 speak up.  Mr. Jones, you were previously sworn?

11             MR. JONES:  Yes.

12             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.

13                  *    *    *    *    *

14                    LEONARD M. JONES,

15 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

16 follows:

17                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

18 QUESTIONS BY MR. KENNEDY:

19        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Jones.  Would you please

20 state your full name for the record.

21        A.   Leonard M. Jones.

22        Q.   And what is your current business address?

23        A.   1 Ameren Plaza, 1901 Choteau Avenue, St.

24 Louis, Missouri 63103.
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1        Q.   And by whom are you employed, Mr. Jones?

2        A.   Ameren Illinois Company doing business as

3 Ameren Illinois.

4        Q.   Do you have in front of you what's been

5 previously marked for identification the direct

6 testimony of Leonard M. Jones Ameren Exhibit 1.0 with

7 attached exhibits, Ameren Exhibits 1.1 through 1.4

8 that were filed on July 22nd, 2013?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   And is this the direct testimony that you

11 caused to be filed in this proceeding?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   To the best of your knowledge are the

14 answers true and accurate?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions

17 today, would you give the same answers?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   Do you have any corrections to this

20 testimony?

21        A.   I do.

22        Q.   Would you please identify them by page and

23 line number?

24        A.   Page 5, line 87, the word sooner should be



65

1 replaced with the word later, and on page 8, line 171,

2 there's a phrase that says DS for Rate Zone II, and

3 that should be Rate Zone I.

4        Q.   Are those the only corrections to your

5 direct testimony?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   Do you have also in front of you Mr. Jones

8 what's previously marked as Ameren Exhibit 4.0, the

9 rebuttal testimony of Leonard M. Jones filed on July

10 22nd, 2013?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   Is this rebuttal testimony that you

13 prepared or caused to be prepared?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   And are the answers here true and accurate

16 to the best of your knowledge?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions,

19 would you give the same responses?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Do you have any corrections to your

22 rebuttal testimony, Mr. Jones?

23        A.   I do.

24        Q.   Can you please state them by page and line
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1 number?

2        A.   Page 7, line 160, there is a phrase, which

3 in this case in, the word in -- on -- the last in

4 there should be replaced with the word is.  Page 9,

5 line 209, add million after $1.87.  On page 17, line

6 365, the word change should be replaced with the word

7 limitation, and continuing on to the next sentence,

8 the word -- the two should be deleted, and the rate

9 zones should be zone, Zone I specifically, and the

10 word the at the end of that line should be deleted,

11 and in its place inserted 0.05 cents per kWh.

12 Continuing onto line --

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Could you read that

14 sentence as it's supposed to read now.

15        A.   I will.  I have one more change to that

16 sentence.

17             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.

18        A.   On line 366, the very first word, same

19 should be deleted, and in its place inserted and 0.025

20 cents per kWh for Rate Zone II.  So let me read that

21 sentence as corrected.  The dollar per kWh increase

22 impact for Rate Zone I is 0.05 cents per kWh, and

23 0.025 cents per kWh for Rate Zone II under AIC's

24 proposal.
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1 BY MR. KENNEDY:

2        Q.   And, Mr. Jones, to further clarify that,

3 those numbers that you mentioned are also shown on the

4 table on the next page, page 18?

5        A.   Yes, they are.

6        Q.   Okay.

7        A.   I have one last correction, page 23, line

8 502, delete the word for after the 25 percent.

9        Q.   Just so it's clear, I mentioned earlier the

10 date of that filing was July 22nd.  The rebuttal

11 testimony actually was filed on November 6, 2013.

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Are those all the corrections you have for

14 your rebuttal testimony, Mr. Jones?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   You also have in front of you what's been

17 previously marked for identification as Ameren Exhibit

18 7.1 or 7.0 and 7.1, the surrebuttal testimony of

19 Leonard M. Jones with supporting exhibit that was

20 filed December 6, 2013?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   And this surrebuttal testimony you prepared

23 or caused to be prepared under your direction?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   Are the answers contained therein true and

2 accurate to the best of your knowledge?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions

5 today, would you provide the same responses?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   Do you have any corrections to your

8 surrebuttal testimony Mr. Jones?

9        A.   No, I do not.

10             MR. KENNEDY:  With that, your Honor, I will

11 tender Mr. Jones for cross-examination and move the

12 exhibits in subject to that cross.

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  We'll wait

14 to rule on evidentiary ruling until cross.

15             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, may I cross the

16 witness?

17             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You may.

18             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honor.

19                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

20 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

21        Q.   Mr. Jones, my name is Sameer Doshi.  I'm an

22 attorney in the Attorney General's office.  Good

23 morning.

24        A.   Good morning.
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1        Q.   I have some questions for you about your

2 testimony.  I'd like to start with your Exhibit 1.1

3 which accompanied your direct testimony.  Do you have

4 that?

5        A.   I do.

6        Q.   If you turn to page 3 of your Exhibit 1.1

7 under the heading 2, Customer Charge on page 3, states

8 that under the Company's proposal, DS-1 Customer

9 Charges shall be changed to an amount necessary to

10 raise the overall recovery of the Customer and Meter

11 Charges to a level equal to 50 percent of the total

12 revenue requirement excluding the Electric

13 Distribution Tax, but not by an amount that exceeds a

14 2.5 percentage point increase in such recovery from

15 present rates.  Do you see that?

16        A.   I do.

17        Q.   And in the next bullet point do you see

18 where the Company makes similar proposal for DS-2

19 Customer Charges?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Can I ask you how did the Company choose

22 that 50 percent figure?

23        A.   50 percent was a value that was approved in

24 the ComEd case in the 2010 docket, appeared to be a
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1 policy decision of the Commission, policy decision.

2 It's also consistent at least conceptually with the

3 way the gas rates are being designed, would recover 80

4 percent of the revenue requirement through the fixed

5 customer charge.  And in the -- in the scope of this

6 rate redesign proceeding we're establishing a

7 methodology that will be used for the next three

8 years.  We -- In prior rate proceedings we have

9 considered establishing a fixed dollar amount rather

10 than a percentage target, but going with a fixed

11 percentage target appeared to be more in keeping with

12 developing methodology that could be reused for the

13 subsequent rate proceedings.

14        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Are you aware that the

15 percentage of the Company's electric distribution

16 costs that is fixed is the same as the percentage of

17 Commonwealth Edison's electric distribution costs that

18 is fixed?

19        A.   I -- I don't know.  I don't think it would

20 be identical.  I would think it would be close.

21        Q.   Can you quantify or estimate how close, how

22 many standard deviations away or something like that?

23        A.   No.  My way of thinking is that the

24 Electric Distribution Tax is variable -- considered
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1 variable, is incurred as a per kWh value.  Both ComEd

2 and Ameren pay slightly different amounts of

3 distribution tax and therefore would have a slightly

4 different amount of remaining fixed costs to

5 recover --

6        Q.   Okay.

7        A.   -- as a percent of the total revenue

8 requirement.

9        Q.   So you're not aware of exactly how --

10 You're not able to quantify identify how close the two

11 percentages are between Ameren versus ComEd; is that

12 correct?

13             MR. KENNEDY:  I'm going to object as vague.

14 It's not clear to me if counsel for the AG is talking

15 about the percentage as it pertains to the customer

16 charge on the bill or if he's talking about the

17 percentage of the composition of the actual

18 distribution type.

19             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, I was referring to

20 the latter concept that Mr. Kennedy mentioned.

21             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  The witness

22 may answer.

23        A.   So you're asking me for a comparison

24 between the Ameren and the ComEd fixed percentage,
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1 and, like I stated in the previous answer, it's

2 substantially a function of the percentage or

3 proportion of the distribution tax to the total, and

4 ComEd is a larger utility than Ameren.  I know the

5 marginal tax rate is slightly higher over a certain

6 threshold so their tax -- overall tax burden is

7 slightly higher.  Marginal tax rate caps out at about

8 .13 cents per kWh.  So their average would be closer

9 to that marginal tax rate whereas ours in this

10 proceeding we're talking about a number that's around

11 .11 -- between .11 and .12 cents per kWh.  So that's

12 -- that's the magnitude of difference that we're

13 talking about, .01 cents per kWh or .02 cents per kWh

14 relative to a total average delivery service

15 realization of somewhere around two cents per kWh is

16 what.  So it's very small difference.

17 BY MR. DOSHI:

18        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  So would it be fair to

19 say that the reason the Company chose 50 percent is

20 because that was the figure approved in ComEd's 2010

21 rate design proceeding?

22        A.   Well , it -- certainly one of the reasons

23 that 50 percent value fit in with the Company's desire

24 to come up with a methodology that could be used
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1 rather than fixing a set dollar amount for the

2 customer charge for DS-1 for the next three years, we

3 thought it would be more appropriate to set that value

4 as a percentage share of the total revenue requirement

5 because we don't know what the total revenue

6 requirement will be next time we file or the two

7 following filings after that.

8        Q.   Was the 50 percent figure in the Company's

9 proposal motivated by particular numerical analysis

10 from the ECOSS, E-C-O-S-S?

11        A.   No.

12        Q.   Okay.  And did the Company consider other

13 straight fixed variable percentages such as 45 percent

14 or 55 percent?

15        A.   Only -- Only to the extent of applying the

16 two and a half percentage point increase for each step

17 as we implement formula rates.  We didn't consider an

18 end goal different than 50 percent.

19        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like to turn, if you

20 don't mind, to your surrebuttal testimony, Exhibit

21 7.0, and please turn to page 21, line 484.  You --

22 Rather, starting at line 479, you quote AG Witness

23 Rubin who in turn quoted a 1961 textbook on public

24 utility rates.  You quote Mr. Rubin who quoted a
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1 passage about marginal or incremental costs from

2 textbook.  Do you see that?

3        A.   I do.

4        Q.   And then at line 484 you refer again to the

5 textbook.  You state or you quote from the textbook,

6 short-run marginal costs should not be ignored, but

7 they should be used with caution and with special

8 warnings of the liability of rates based thereon to

9 cancellation or revision on short notice, and then

10 that's the end of the quote.  Then you state the

11 Company's proposed pricing recovers embedded total

12 costs, not short-run marginal costs.  Do you see all

13 that?

14        A.   I do.

15        Q.   Okay.  Do you have a copy of Mr. Rubin's

16 testimony with you?

17        A.   Not with me, no.

18             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, would it be all

19 right if I gave a copy of Mr. Rubin's testimony to Mr.

20 Jones to refer to?

21             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Certainly.  Show his

22 counsel first.

23 BY MR. DOSHI:

24        Q.   I'm going to give Mr. Jones a copy of Mr.
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1 Rubin's rebuttal testimony, Exhibit 2.0.  Mr. Jones,

2 could you turn to page 3 of Mr. Rubin's AG Exhibit 2.0

3 there.  Do you see the passage at the bottom of the

4 page, starting on line 56 where he quotes from the

5 textbook?

6        A.   I do.

7        Q.   Did Mr. Rubin refer to short-run marginal

8 costs when he, or, rather, does the passage refer to

9 short-run marginal costs?

10        A.   The words short-run do not appear.

11        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  If you don't mind, I'm

12 going to take that copy back.  I'm going to hand to

13 you the copy again.  Do you see at line 59 where the

14 passage from that textbook refers to marginal or

15 incremental costs of a relatively long-run variety?

16        A.   Yes, I see that.

17        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, in light of that

18 quote from the textbook, do you -- do you agree that

19 marginal or incremental costs could be of a long-run

20 variety?

21        A.   Certainly.  They can be -- They can be

22 categorized as short-run or long-run.  Textbooks talk

23 about both.

24        Q.   Could you describe what your understanding
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1 of marginal or incremental costs of a long-run variety

2 might be?

3        A.   In an economic textbook sense, I think

4 Professor Bonbright talked about this, long-run

5 variety of costs could be where all inputs can be

6 changed regardless of what is already perhaps in

7 existence.  All inputs can be changed.  So that time

8 horizon could be anywhere from five years, ten years,

9 50 years, 70 years.  So it's a very -- Long run really

10 has a very long-term time horizon to it.

11        Q.   Does Ameren Illinois have what you just

12 described as long-run marginal or incremental costs

13 with respect to its distribution -- electric

14 distribution service cost?

15        A.   I think every firm faces long-run marginal

16 costs or long-run incremental costs.  I mean it's --

17 it's something that every -- every firm will face.

18        Q.   What are some of Ameren Illinois's long-run

19 marginal costs with respect to its distribution

20 service plant?

21        A.   Again in the textbook definition of

22 long-run where all inputs would be allowed to change,

23 you know, everything in the -- in the textbook

24 definition everything is a -- all costs are a long-
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1 term or incremental costs potentially.

2        Q.   Would you agree that utility poles could be

3 a long-run or long-term marginal cost?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   Would you agree that transformers might be

6 a long-run or long-term marginal cost?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   Would you agree that substations might be a

9 long-run marginal cost?

10             MR. KENNEDY:  I'm going to object just

11 because it's not clear from his questions what counsel

12 means by long-term, and perhaps you could give some

13 clarity to that as to particular duration of period or

14 if he's just asking the witness for his understanding

15 of what he means by long-term.

16             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, the witness I

17 believe a minute ago just gave his own understanding

18 or definition of long-term so I'm asking the witness

19 whether some specific examples would fit that

20 definition.

21             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Objection's overruled.

22 BY MR. DOSHI:

23        Q.   Mr. Jones, I think my question was whether

24 substations could be seen as long-run marginal costs
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1 for Ameren Illinois.

2        A.   Yes, in that textbook definition.

3        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And how frequently does

4 Ameren Illinois replace, let's say, utility poles?

5        A.   Infrequently.  I'm not sure what the

6 depreciation rate is on utility poles.  That would

7 give us an indication of what the long-term

8 replacement rate would be.  I just don't have that

9 information.

10        Q.   Okay.  If I ask you the same questions

11 about transformers and substations, would you give

12 roughly the same answer?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Can you turn to your

15 rebuttal testimony, Exhibit 4.0, page 27 line -- line

16 583.  There you state that under the formula rate

17 structure, prices are updated annually.  A residential

18 customer's fluctuations in that one year time period

19 between rate cases will not cause fluctuation in

20 utility pole costs.

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   If a particular customer class or all the

23 customers in a particular rate zone showed a

24 significant increase in demand, and I'll define
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1 significant as -- just to pick a number, 20 percent,

2 I'm just randomly picking a number -- over -- over a

3 five-year period, might that cause AIC to change or to

4 -- to install additional plant to meet that demand?

5        A.   I don't know.  It would be regional, very

6 localized specific to that -- to that system.  System

7 may have adequate capacity to serve much greater than

8 20 percent increase, and by capacity, are you

9 referring to demand or energy usage?

10        Q.   Demand.

11        A.   Demand.  Yes.  So by -- yeah, it would be

12 very localized in how any incremental investment that

13 would be needed.  It may be the answer that no

14 additional investment would be needed.

15        Q.   Okay.  But it's conceivable that under my

16 example a consistent increase in demand manifesting

17 over five years of, let's say, 20 percent might --

18 might lead the Company to upgrade or enhance or

19 install new plant?

20        A.   It -- It's -- Hypothetically speaking, it

21 is possible that somewhere along the distribution

22 system additional plant would have to be added, yes.

23        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  What if I changed my

24 hypothetical to a consistent increase, their demand
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1 over three years, would that be enough increase in

2 demand, would that be enough -- enough time to

3 persuade the Company that an upgrade in plant is

4 needed?

5        A.   I -- I don't know.  It really depends on

6 the -- what the distribution planners would decide is

7 -- is necessary to ensure safe and adequate reliable

8 service for customers, and it's -- it's also dependent

9 on future expectations, and the distribution planners

10 would likely study that level of demand growth.  They

11 would probably study what is causing that level of

12 demand growth to making a decision on what -- what

13 investment is needed to serve customers, if any.

14        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, you mentioned

15 expectations.  I'd like to look back at your

16 surrebuttal testimony, Exhibit 7.0.  Sorry, I keep

17 switching.  At page 25, line 560, you state that the

18 customer with low or no use still requires facilities

19 to stand by ready to serve the customer should they

20 desire to consume electricity.  The delivery system is

21 designed to serve the maximum expected demands of

22 customers.  Can I ask how the Company determines

23 maximum expected demand?

24        A.   It's a --
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1             MR. KENNEDY:  I'm going to object because I

2 think Mr. Jones previously said he's not a design

3 planner for the Company.  So this may be calling for

4 him to speculate on that.  To the extent he knows or

5 has knowledge of the practices, he can answer.  I'm

6 just not sure he does.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  It's not really an

8 objection.  It's an "I might be objecting in a

9 minute."

10             MR. KENNEDY:  Objection; speculation based

11 on his previous testimony that he's not a design

12 distribution planner for the Company.

13 BY MR. DOSHI:

14        Q.   Mr. Jones, to the extent you're able to

15 answer, can you explain how the Company determines the

16 maximum expected demand of customers as you described

17 at line 562 of your Exhibit 7.0.

18        A.   Yeah.  I do know that we design the system

19 to serve the maximum expected demand of customers that

20 -- when it comes to the residential customers, their

21 -- the design -- the designers look at fairly generic

22 loads for that customer.  If it's a single family

23 home, they have a certain demand threshold.  I don't

24 know what that demand threshold is that they would
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1 design the system for.

2        Q.   Does the Company -- For this purpose of

3 calculating maximum expected demand, does the Company

4 attempt to determine expected demand for individual

5 homes or whole neighborhoods or towns or whole rate

6 zones, or -- or is there simply one average number

7 applied to every residential customer?

8             MR. KENNEDY:  I'm going to object again on

9 the same reason, just that -- and this question like

10 the other question is assuming that he has -- that

11 he's a distribution design planner, or has knowledge

12 of what that -- what the Company does, and Mr. Jones

13 has stated that's not his area he works for the

14 Company.

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Jones, if you don't

16 -- if you can't answer the questions, do not answer

17 the question.  Otherwise your objection is overruled.

18        A.   Yeah.  You exceeded my level of knowledge.

19 So I can't answer those questions -- that question.

20 BY MR. DOSHI:

21        Q.   All right.  Do you know if any of the

22 Company's witnesses in this proceeding could answer

23 the question?

24        A.   I don't know.
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1        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  If, hypothetically, a

2 whole town adopted the trend that has swept Japan in

3 recent years where they wear short-sleeved shirts in

4 the summer to save on air conditioning costs, which I

5 suppose would reduce electric demand for that town in

6 one year -- or actually let me change my hypothetical.

7 Let's say that trend lasted for five years, would that

8 -- would that change the Company's determination of

9 maximum expected demand either for that town alone or

10 for its whole service territory?

11        A.   I don't know.  As stated previously, it

12 would have to be studied by our distribution design

13 planners on what steps they would need to take to

14 address that situation although I -- I don't believe

15 your hypothetical is very likely.  In fact, I think

16 the opposite may be true, where the use -- the

17 residential usage as it appeared to have hit a

18 plateau, where test year sales in this proceeding 2012

19 were actually lower than total residential sales were

20 in 2006 in that rate proceeding.  So the era of

21 increasing demand -- residential demand does not

22 appear to be a situation that we're faced with today.

23        Q.   Okay.  So in light of plateauing or

24 possibly decreasing residential demand, does that
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1 enter into the Company's decisions on installing or

2 retiring plants in service?

3        A.   I don't know.  I would have to find out

4 from our distribution planners what kind of conditions

5 would change.

6        Q.   Okay.  Can you turn, still on Exhibit 7.0,

7 can you turn to page 26.  At line 576 you state that

8 customers in Rate Zone I and Rate Zone III previously

9 received discounted electricity for electric

10 space-heat use.  The Company has retained those

11 identifiers for purposes of administering Rider BGS.

12 Do you see that?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   Now, is the Company able to identify

15 space-heat users in Rate Zone II as well?

16        A.   No, the Rate Zone II legacy rates -- by

17 that I mean the rates that apply prior to 2007, did

18 not have a special space-heat indicator.  So while the

19 Company -- The Company does not have a reliable

20 space-heat flag or indicator for Rate Zone II.

21        Q.   Okay.  Can you turn to your Exhibit 7.1,

22 which was an attachment to 7.0.  It's a chart showing

23 a comparison between the Company's proposed rate

24 design and the People's proposed rate design, and
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1 these are residential -- these are for residential

2 customers after a hypothetical 25 percent revenue

3 requirement increase.  In the chart at Exhibit 7.1,

4 you have -- you break it down among rate zones, Rate

5 Zone I, Rate Zone I Metro East, Rate Zone II and Rate

6 Zone III.  My question is, for Rate Zone II how are

7 you able to compile statistics on space-heat users?

8        A.   The delivery service rates are not applied

9 based on hard and fast definition of a space-heat,

10 rather it's more of a passive means by discounting the

11 service to customers for usage over 800 kW hours in a

12 non-summer usage, not summer period.

13        Q.   Okay.

14        A.   So all -- all customers receive the same

15 rate.  It's just that the space-heat customers happen

16 to benefit from that rate design more than the general

17 user who don't have as high non-summer use.

18        Q.   Okay.  So although you weren't able to

19 identify Rate Zone II space-heat users, based on the

20 testimony at the top of page 26 of Exhibit 7.0, on

21 Exhibit 7.1 you were able to present a hypothetical,

22 in fact, for space-heat users for Rate Zone II?

23        A.   Yes, and in this exhibit all rate zones --

24 we're using the same load profile or usages for each
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1 of the usage blocks that -- the same usage profile is

2 applied to the rates for each rate zone just so you

3 can see what the effect is, and those space-heat --

4 many of those space-heat profiles come from the Rate

5 Zone I or the Rate Zone III historical information.

6        Q.   Okay.  And at the top of Exhibit 7.1, you

7 state that this is for a hypothetical 25 percent

8 system average delivery services increase, which I

9 take to mean revenue requirement increase; is that

10 correct?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   And is there any significance to 25

13 percent?

14        A.   It is a hypothetical that has some basis in

15 what we may expect for the next delivery service rate

16 update proceeding.  The initial -- The initial MAP

17 formula rate updates have been all rate decreases.

18 The Company has been spending money, and that spending

19 will be reflected in the next update.

20        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like now to turn to

21 the topic of the Electric Distribution Tax.  What I'm

22 going to hand you, as well as to your Honor and to

23 counsel, is a printout from the web page from the

24 Illinois Department of Revenue showing the rates for
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1 the Electric Distribution Tax.  I'm sorry.  I should

2 have printed one more copy.  Mr. Jones, would you --

3             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Doshi?

4             MR. DOSHI:  Yes.

5             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Would you like to give

6 this a number, or how are you going to identify this

7 exhibit?

8             MR. DOSHI:  Well, your Honor, the

9 Commission can take administrative notice, I believe,

10 of these tax figures.

11             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I'm on a more procedural

12 level.  If you're going to be referring to this, we'll

13 need you to refer to it as a certain number or letter

14 or AG Cross Exhibit something.  So how would you --

15 How do you intend to identify it?

16             MR. DOSHI:  I'll introduce it as AG Cross

17 Exhibit 1.

18             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.

19 BY MR. DOSHI:

20        Q.   Mr. Jones, on -- I think on the second page

21 of that -- of that packet, they indicate the tax rates

22 for the Electricity Distribution Tax.  Do you see

23 that?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   Would you accept subject to check that this

2 is the current schedule of tax rates for -- and

3 actually from now on I'll call it the EDT.  Would you

4 accept that this is the current schedule?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Okay.  Now, if you turn to your Exhibit 1

7 -- Exhibit 1.3, please turn to page 14 of your Exhibit

8 1.3.  Please look at line 900 at the bottom column B,

9 from that chart, would you agree that the Company

10 sells approximately 36.9 billion, with a B, kW hours

11 per year in Illinois?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Okay.  And then referring back to the

14 EDT tax schedule, you agree that the highest tax

15 bracket for the EDT starts for kW hours in excess of

16 18 billion --

17        A.   The highest --

18        Q.   -- 18 billion kW hours?

19        A.   That's the highest -- That's the highest

20 usage bracket, not the highest rate.

21        Q.   You're right.  I'm sorry.  You're right.

22 The highest usage bracket is kW hours in excess of 18

23 billion kW hours, and the rate for such kW hours is

24 $.00131 per kWh; would you agree with that?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, on Exhibit 1.3,

3 page 5, I'd like to look at the rates paid by

4 transmission level DS-4 customer in, let's say, Rate

5 Zone I.  So on page 5, column C, line 309, we're

6 looking at DS-4 transmission customers, and in column

7 C, line 309, would you agree that the -- under current

8 -- under current charges, the EDT rate paid by such

9 customers is $.0001004 per kWh?

10        A.   Yes, that's the value that's shown there.

11 Just to be clear, these are the indicative prices that

12 the Company suggested in its formula rate update in

13 Docket 13-0301, which just recently received an order

14 -- I think the value -- the revenue requirement that

15 we received is a little bit lower than we requested.

16 So this value could -- could actually go down a little

17 bit.

18        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now, can we assume,

19 hypothetically, that if one DS-4 transmission customer

20 increases its electricity usage by ten million kW

21 hours in a year, would you agree that under that

22 scenario the Company would incur incremental or

23 marginal EDT charge of ten million times, and then

24 referring to the tax schedule, $.00131 which works out
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1 to about $13,000.  Would you -- Subject to check,

2 would you agree to that?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Would you agree that

5 under the indicative EDT charge from Docket 13-0301,

6 if that customer incurred ten million incremental kW

7 hours, that customer would pay to AIC as revenue ten

8 million times $.0001004 which works out to

9 approximately $1,000 subject to check?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   So under that hypothetical, would you agree

12 that the Company would actually lose about $12,000

13 when -- when the customer incurs that or uses that

14 incremental ten million kW hours of electricity?

15        A.   All other things equal, yes.

16        Q.   Okay.  Now, referring again to Exhibit 1.3,

17 page 5, under the proposed rate redesign column F,

18 line 309, looks like the Company's proposing to

19 increase the Rate Zone I DS-4 transmission customer

20 EDT charge by approximately a factor of six, so that

21 the new value will be $.0006294 per kWh; is that

22 correct?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   So under my previous hypothetical, instead
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1 of collecting approximately $1,000 in EDT payments

2 from that customer after it incurs ten million of

3 hypothetical incremental kW hours usage, now the

4 Company would collect approximately $6,000 of EDT

5 payment?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   It would still be the case that the Company

8 is losing money on that incremental usage; would that

9 be correct?

10        A.   Yes, the marginal revenue would be less

11 than the marginal costs in that instance.

12        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  So would it be fair to

13 say that other rate classes other than DS-4 are

14 subsidizing the EDT-related loss that the Company is

15 taking for DS-4 customers?

16        A.   Yes, that's the effect of what would

17 happen.  We design our rates with the subsidy built in

18 and other customer class would have to pick up the

19 shortfall.

20        Q.   Okay.  And under your proposal with regard

21 to the DS-4 EDT charge, would it be fair to say that

22 the subsidy would continue for at least three more

23 years?

24        A.   Under the Company's proposal, I don't
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1 believe it would continue beyond third year.  I think

2 it would be potentially resolved in two years.

3        Q.   Okay.  Okay.  Thank you.

4        A.   Of course, that depends on a number of

5 factors like changes in the total revenue requirement,

6 beyond just the EDT, and the changes in the EDT

7 average value in itself could also have an influence

8 on that --

9        Q.   Okay.

10        A.   -- but based on the assumptions in this

11 proceeding, it would appear to be close to two and

12 perhaps three.

13        Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I think I have just one

14 last question.  Can you turn to your direct testimony,

15 Exhibit 1.0, page 22, you state at line 441, there is

16 no distinguishing factor that differentiates a kWh

17 provided to a DS-1 customer from a kWh provided to a

18 DS-4 customer for purposes of calculating the

19 EDT owed, and then you conclude the paragraph saying,

20 each customer class and sub class should pay the same

21 average distribution tax price provided to a DS-1.

22 Why do you think each customer class and subclass

23 should pay the same average distribution tax price?

24        A.   For the reason I outlined in the first
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1 sentence.  There's really no distinguishing factor

2 that the State makes in the kW hours that are

3 provided.  Each kWh runs through the distribution tax

4 table, and the State doesn't care if it's a

5 residential customer or a DS-4 customer or any other

6 customer.  It's all kW hours delivered by the Company

7 run through the tax table, and therefore the basis of

8 rate equity, it makes sense that ultimately we strive

9 to achieve an equalized distribution tax price.

10             MR. DOSHI:  Okay.  Thank you.  Your Honor,

11 that's all my questions for Mr. Jones.

12             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.

13             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.

14             MR. KENNEDY:  If I may ask a question of

15 counsel, were you intending to move this into the

16 record.  It may be preferable so I can have a copy, or

17 do you want to just refer --

18             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, I think if we refer

19 to this document in briefing, we would simply refer to

20 the website and ask that the Commission take

21 administrative notice.  Would that be all right?

22             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I think it would

23 probably be preferable just to move the document in so

24 the Commission doesn't have to look up a website.
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1             MR. KENNEDY:  Make sure they're on the

2 right page.

3             MR. DOSHI:  Right.  Okay.

4             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Or the page changes.

5             MR. DOSHI:  Okay.  Then at this time can I

6 move that the document I submitted as AG Cross Exhibit

7 1 be admitted into evidence?

8             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Any objections?

9             MR. KENNEDY:  No objections, your Honor.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  AG Cross Exhibit 1 will

11 be admitted into evidence.

12                   (AG Cross Exhibit 1 admitted.)

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Doshi --

14             MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  -- would you be able to

16 file that on e-Docket for us?

17             MR. DOSHI:  Yes, we will do that, your

18 Honor.

19             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Can you do that within a

20 couple days?

21             MR. DOSHI:  Sure.

22             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  By the end of next week

23 anyhow.

24             MR. DOSHI:  Sure.  Thank you.
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1             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Robertson.

2             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  I suggest -- I may

3 have a little bit more for this witness than I

4 estimated, and I wondered if now might be an

5 appropriate time to break for lunch and we wouldn't

6 have to stop in the middle.

7             MR. KENNEDY:  The Company doesn't object.

8             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Is that all right with

9 Staff?

10             MR. LANNON:  We're good.

11             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right then.  At this

12 time we'll take a break for lunch.  Shall we reconvene

13 at 1 p.m.?

14             MR. KENNEDY:  Yes.

15             MR. DEARMONT:  If you don't mind, the

16 parties may benefit from some discussion that might

17 take place over lunch.  Would it be possible for us to

18 move the reconvening time back just a little bit?

19             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Certainly.  How much

20 time do you want?

21             MR. DEARMONT:  Maybe 1:30.  Is that okay?

22             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That's fine.  Doesn't

23 look like to me we have too much cross for this

24 afternoon.  So we would be able to finish.  1:30 we
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1 will reconvene then.

2             MR. LANNON:  Thank you, your Honor.

3                   (Lunch break taken.)

4             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Back on the record.  Mr.

5 Robertson, do you have some cross for Mr. Jones?

6             MR. ROBERTSON:  I do.

7                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

8 QUESTIONS BY MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:

9        Q.   My name is Eric Robertson.  I represent the

10 Illinois Industrial Energy Consumers, and probably the

11 only person in the room that's been doing this longer

12 than you have.  So if I can find my -- I wanted to ask

13 you about the Electric Distribution Tax.

14        A.   Okay.

15        Q.   And do you refer to that as the DVT in your

16 testimony?

17        A.   Actually it's EDT.

18        Q.   All right.

19        A.   Stands for Electric Distribution Tax.

20        Q.   All right.  And I'm an Ameren residential

21 customer in Granite City, Illinois, and if my actual

22 usage at home were 1,000 kWh this month, can you tell

23 me exactly how much Ameren will pay in the nature of

24 the Electric Distribution Tax for that 1,000 kWh?
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1        A.   The expense is allocated back to the

2 Company after the end of the year, after the total kW

3 sales are known for the Company, and the actual

4 expense is also -- the kW hours run through the

5 seven-tier blocks that we went over this morning, the

6 state code, but there's also a total cap on the amount

7 of tax paid by all utilities in the State of Illinois.

8 So there's a -- potentially a refund or a credit memo

9 that's issued back to the utility for use or that

10 offsets the cost that goes to their facility.  We know

11 generically that it's something close to what's in the

12 tier schedules, but it's going to be probably

13 something a little bit less than that, a little bit

14 less than the Tail Block Rate because of the credit

15 memos.  We don't know exactly what that is.

16        Q.   All right.  And that's a function -- The

17 reason you don't know that is because -- I'm sorry.

18 That's part of the function of the -- these -- 1,000

19 kWh, they have to run through that block structure; is

20 that right?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Okay.  So it's not just a matter of taking

23 the highest increment away of the bottom from the

24 block structure and applying it to that 1,000 kWh?



98

1        A.   Right.

2             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Excuse me.  We're

3 getting some feedback from the people on the phone.

4 Maybe you could mute your phones, and, of course,

5 you're welcome to speak any time you wish to

6 participate.

7 BY MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:

8        Q.   Okay.  Now, if the -- if the Company were

9 to experience an increase -- incremental increase in

10 usage of ten million kWh -- Well, let me ask it a

11 different way.  Is it reasonable to assume that in a

12 general way as energy usage increased on an annual

13 basis, the Company demand can increase as well?

14        A.   Yes, I think the operative word is it can

15 increase.  It won't necessarily increase, but it can

16 increase.

17        Q.   Yeah.  And if energy usage increases and

18 demand increases as well, will the Company receive

19 additional delivery service revenue, all else equal?

20        A.   All else equal, yes.

21        Q.   And as I understand it, this tax what we're

22 talking about, is the equivalent of an operating

23 expense to the Company, it's part of the Company

24 revenue requirement?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   And that's because the tax is imposed on

3 the Company just the way income taxes are imposed on

4 the Company; is that correct?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Now, all else equal, if annual usage

7 increases, and demand increases, and the Company

8 obtains additional revenue, and this tax is part of

9 the Company's revenue requirement, would the Company

10 have some additional revenue to apply to the tax?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   All right.  Let's move on to another

13 subject.  I'd like to refer you to page 9 of your

14 surrebuttal, line 199, and I'm going to focus

15 exclusively on your surrebuttal, Mr. Jones.

16        A.   Okay.

17        Q.   Now, there you testify that percentage

18 impacts are going to be high for certain subclasses

19 because the average cents per kWh rate currently used

20 to allocate the EDT expense to those classes is so

21 low.  Am I reading that correctly?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Would you agree subject to check that Mr.

24 Stephens' analysis of the increases associated with
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1 the Company's rate moderation proposal are -- his

2 analysis was performed on the basis of percentage

3 revenue increase by class, not average cents per kWh?

4        A.   Yes, his focus is on percentages.

5        Q.   Okay.  Now, at page 9, line 202, you

6 testify that in Docket -- that had the Commission

7 entered an order in Docket 11-0279, it would have

8 fixed the shortcoming in the revenue allocation

9 methodology approved by the Commission in Docket

10 09-0306, and 0308; is that correct?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   Now, you reference a proposal made by

13 Ameren in that case.  Is that correct?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   All right.  Now, in that case the Company

16 elected to voluntarily dismiss the case before the

17 Commission could enter a final order; is that correct?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   Did the proposal that the Company made in

20 that case to fix the revenue allocation methodology

21 that was approved in 09-0306 and 0308 include the

22 point -- I'm sorry, 0 -- is it -- what's the per kWh

23 criteria you're using in your rate modification plan?

24        A.   Minimum threshold of .05 cents per kW hour.
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1        Q.   Was that criterion incorporated in the

2 approach the Company proposed in 11-0279?

3        A.   No, the distribution tax subsidy issue was

4 addressed in two steps.  It was included in the

5 overall revenue allocation in the first step including

6 a small increase in the distribution tax value, and

7 then the distribution tax value itself was set to

8 operate outside of the rate case, and reduce half the

9 subsidy in the next subsequent year, fully remove the

10 subsidy moving the rate to equalized value in that

11 third year.

12        Q.   So the .05 cents criterion was not

13 necessary in that instance to correct the problem the

14 Company perceived with the revenue allocation approved

15 in 09-0306; is that correct?

16        A.   Yes, it's different -- different

17 methodology and under different circumstances.

18        Q.   Is it also correct to say that the alleged

19 problem with the allocation 09-0306 would have been

20 fixed based on your position here had the Company

21 continued to implement a traditional ratemaking

22 approach rather than adopting the formula rate

23 approach?

24        A.   Yes, under the proposed order
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1 recommendation, the distribution tax subsidy, we'd be

2 approaching an equalized value by February of 2014.

3        Q.   Now, also has it been your experience, Mr.

4 Jones, that the Commission sometimes modifies or

5 rejects provisions of proposed orders by

6 administrative law judges?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   And, in fact, the Commission is not bound

9 -- based on your experience in the industry, they're

10 not bound by the proposed order; is that correct?

11        A.   That's correct.

12        Q.   And so the Commission in essence did not

13 approve in Docket 11-0279 the Company's approach; is

14 that correct?

15        A.   That's correct.  It was supported by the

16 same Staff member that was active in the 09 docket and

17 also supported by the same judges that were active in

18 the 09 docket.

19             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Your Honor, I'm going

20 to say that the last part of the answer was not

21 responsive in any way to the question I asked.  I move

22 to strike everything after he answered yes.  I didn't

23 ask him what Staff members supported it.  I didn't ask

24 him what administrative law judges supported it.
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1             MR. KENNEDY:  No objection.  We'll

2 stipulate the Commission didn't enter an order on that

3 docket.

4             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.

5 BY MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:

6        Q.   May I refer you to page 10, line 222 of

7 your surrebuttal.

8        A.   Okay.

9        Q.   Now, there you refer to correct values for

10 potential increases to the 100 -- I'm sorry, +100 kV

11 subclass customer group of 12 percent to 200 percent;

12 is that correct?

13        A.   Okay.  Line 220.  Yes.

14        Q.   Okay.  Now, would you agree that the 12

15 percent end of that range represents the potential

16 increase for Rate Zone II +100 kV customers?

17        A.   No, the 12 percent is high voltage Rate

18 Zone I and the -- be easier to refer to my rebuttal

19 testimony page 16 table contained on that page.

20        Q.   Okay.  Could you refer to page 10 lines 227

21 and 229 of your surrebuttal testimony.

22        A.   Okay.

23        Q.   Well, let me ask you one clarification

24 question.  Which Rate Zone has the Company proposed a
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1 rate design that would adjust transformation to the

2 charges downward for the +100 kV subclass?

3        A.   Rate Zone II.

4        Q.   Now, do you know how many years it would

5 take for any of the customers in Rate Zones I, II, or

6 III to receive the full increase in rates that you say

7 they need under your proposal?

8        A.   I believe I stated two to three rate

9 iterations in my direct testimony.

10        Q.   And by rate considerations, you mean the

11 annual formula rate?

12        A.   Yeah, my iterations.

13        Q.   Oh, I'm sorry.

14        A.   Yes.  But consistent with what you're

15 saying.

16        Q.   Right.  Now, referring to page 11, you

17 suggest at lines 251 to 252, that it would take 13

18 iterations of ten percent increase for each iteration

19 for the EDT to achieve -- or strike that -- to achieve

20 uniform EDT values for the DS-4 class +100 kV

21 subclass; is that correct?

22        A.   Yes.  Specifically this is based on the

23 average AIC-combined weighted total of DS-4 +100 kV.

24        Q.   Now, would that be in part a function or in
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1 any way related to the Company's current cost of

2 service study as a measurement of the rates customers

3 are currently paying or their cost of service?

4        A.   Yes, this analysis is static.  It assumes

5 that the cost of service does not change.  It's just

6 simply trying to measure the number of iterations

7 holding everything else constant that would be

8 required to achieve uniformity.

9        Q.   Now, if the Commission were to direct

10 modification of that study in this case to reallocate

11 or change the allocation of costs to customer classes

12 and subclasses, could that affect the number of

13 iterations needed to achieve a uniformity?

14        A.   Make sure I understand your question.  So

15 you're -- instead of holding everything constant,

16 you're saying if there's a change in something, is not

17 held constant, could that affect the number of

18 iterations?

19        Q.   Yes.

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Page 12 line 271 you suggest there that

22 when percentages are applied to small values, they can

23 lack meaning, is that a correct characterization of

24 your testimony?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   Mr. Jones, you've been doing this a long

3 time.  Do you have any feel for what the average

4 residential customer would pay for delivery service on

5 a monthly basis in the Ameren service area?  Now, I

6 have a number, I could throw it out, see if you agree

7 with it based on the number of customers in the

8 service territory.  $35 a month?

9        A.   That sounds about right, yeah.

10        Q.   Now, would you also agree that the delivery

11 service bill for some of your larger industrial

12 customers could be over $100,000 per month?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   Would you agree that $35 compared to

15 $100,000 would be a small value?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   Okay.  Now, would you -- would increasing

18 the residential customers' delivery service bill $35 a

19 month by 200 percent or 300 percent be acceptable to

20 Ameren if it were necessary to do so to bring that

21 customer to cost of service?

22        A.   I don't think we would recommend that step.

23 It would be too great, especially when compared to the

24 total bill impact that would be experienced by the
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1 customer.

2        Q.   Now, would you agree or disagree that

3 including the commodity cost and a portion of the

4 customer's bill in the calculation of rate impacts

5 based on increase in total bill would tend to

6 obfuscate the percentage increase that the residential

7 customer would in -- would experience in his delivery

8 service cost?

9        A.   I don't know -- I don't agree that it would

10 necessarily obfuscate.  It would -- It would not

11 change the dollar impact to the -- to the customer.

12 It would not impact the dollar amount no matter how

13 you portrayed it.

14        Q.   Would you -- I won't ask you the next

15 question.  Would you agree as a general matter that

16 customers in the DS-4 class pay a larger delivery

17 service cost than residential customers?

18        A.   I guess I need more specifics on what

19 you're -- on your question.  You look at the total

20 revenue or the billing determinants.  The residential

21 class is clearly the largest.

22        Q.   Okay.  What I'm talking about is for an

23 individual industrial customer is purchasing more

24 units of service from the Company, delivery service in



108

1 this case --

2        A.   Yeah.

3        Q.   -- than the residential customer, and the

4 more units of service you buy, the more costs you're

5 paying, would you agree with that?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   Now, is it your understanding that there is

8 a cap mechanism for increases to residential customers

9 or residential classes, smaller customer classes,

10 present in the formula rate law as adopted by the

11 Illinois General Assembly?

12        A.   I'm aware of a two and a half percent per

13 year residential rate cap evaluation for -- look at

14 the 12 months ended May, 2012, compared to the 12

15 months ended May, 2014, the average realization for

16 the residential rate, and to the extent the 2014 rates

17 exceed an annual two and a half percent limit formula

18 rate, legislation would be suspended.

19        Q.   Now, all else equal, the quicker you bring

20 the IED or the EDT, Electric Distribution Tax, to a

21 uniform percentage charge for all customers, the less

22 likely it would be that the Company would exceed that

23 cap for residential customers?

24        A.   Yeah, our rate design proposal, the revenue
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1 allocation proposal will have no impact on the -- on a

2 residential rate cap because these rates in this

3 methodology will not take effect until January, 2015,

4 after the formula rate cap is evaluated.

5        Q.   Okay.  Now, would you take a look at page

6 21 to 30 -- I'm sorry, 29 to 30 of your surrebuttal

7 line 664 to 665.

8        A.   Okay.

9        Q.   When you mention that Rate Zone II's

10 customers that make use -- greater use of

11 Transformation Charge provisions in Ameren's Delivery

12 Services tariffs, what specific group of customers are

13 you referring to?

14        A.   In this context I'm talking about the +100

15 kV supply group in Rate Zone II.

16        Q.   Okay.

17        A.   Those customers are -- use the

18 Transformation Service provided by the Company more

19 heavily than the other two rate zones.

20        Q.   Now, you suggest that the -- their greater

21 use of Transformation Charge provisions has the effect

22 of raising their delivery service revenues base; is

23 that correct?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   Would you agree that if Ameren's

2 Transformation Charge proposal were already in place

3 as we sit here today, the revenue base for these

4 customers would be substantially lower than it is now?

5        A.   That would be true if there was no offset

6 to the EDT price.

7        Q.   Now, does your rate moderation proposal in

8 this case have a smaller impact on these customers

9 because you are simultaneously lowering the

10 transformation charge for the customers and raising

11 the EDT charge?  By lower impact, I mean lower

12 compared to other similarly-situated customers in the

13 other two rate zones.

14        A.   I think what's happening for Rate Zone II

15 +100 kV is that we're achieving a revenue level that

16 is approximately equal to the fully allocated embedded

17 cost of service.

18        Q.   And the mechanics associated with doing

19 that are the mechanics that I described for lowering

20 the transformation charge and increasing the IET -- or

21 EDT charge?

22        A.   Yes, it -- it -- Yes.

23        Q.   Okay.  Now, if you were not lowering the

24 transformation charge in this instance, would these
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1 customers see increases on a percentage or revenue

2 basis closer to the increases that have been estimated

3 for similarly-situated customers in Rate Zone I and

4 III?

5        A.   No, I think the percentage increase would

6 end up being about the same.

7        Q.   About the same as the other customers?

8        A.   No, about the same as what we're proposing

9 in this proceeding or suggesting in this proceeding.

10 It takes about a 20 to 21 percent increase to get that

11 class to fully allocate the cost of services.  So I

12 don't -- the total cost.

13        Q.   You're talking about -- All right.  All

14 right.  I see what you're saying.  Now, at page 30,

15 line 681, you reference a small change -- make sure

16 I've got it written down right.  You state that the

17 cents per kWh criterion on its face is a small change,

18 one-half of one-tenth of one cent per kWh; is that

19 right?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Would you agree that for the largest couple

22 of customers in the DS-4 +100 kV subclass in Rate

23 Zones I and III an increase of one-tenth of a cent per

24 kWh could result in an increase of one million dollars
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1 or more per year in their delivery service rates?

2        A.   Yes, it's possible.

3             MR. KENNEDY:  Mr. Robertson, I don't want

4 to break your momentum.

5             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  You did.  I'm done.

6             MR. KENNEDY:  Okay.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Does that complete your

8 cross?

9             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Yes.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Jenkins.

11                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

12 QUESTIONS BY MR. JENKINS:

13        Q.   Mr. Jones, Alan Jenkins for the Commercial

14 Group.  Good afternoon.

15        A.   Good afternoon.

16        Q.   Let's begin by trying to collect some of

17 that momentum of counsel.  Let's begin with your

18 surrebuttal, Exhibit -- Ameren Exhibit 7.0.  If I

19 could point you to page 14.

20        A.   Okay.

21        Q.   Now, at line 328, you suggest perhaps in

22 surrebuttal state an alternative proposal.  Could you

23 describe what that alternative proposal is?

24        A.   Yes.  I believe this was in response to
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1 Staff's criticism of the revenue allocation proposal

2 at -- where if the 0.5 cents per kW hour value is

3 deemed to be too great of a change all at once, the

4 Commission could adopt a different value such as an

5 amount say half of that, which is 0.25 cents per kW

6 hour, and I go on to describe the effect that would

7 have on the subsidy in question.

8             MR. JENKINS:  May I approach the witness,

9 your Honor?

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You may.  If you -- I

11 don't know if you're going to enter it in evidence.

12 You might as well give it to the court reporter, and

13 then you can mark it for him, or we can ask him to

14 file it on e-Docket later.  In any event it would be

15 handy for you to have a copy of it.

16             MR. LANNON:  Thank you, sir.

17 BY MR. JENKINS:

18        Q.   And we have pre-marked this document as

19 Commercial Group Cross Exhibit 1.

20             Mr. Jones, is this a data response that you

21 prepared in response to Commercial Group Data Request

22 1.1?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   And does it -- Do the tables on page 1 of 2
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1 -- you have three tables, one for each Rate Zone.  Do

2 they tabulate your alternative proposal that you just

3 described based on a third constraint of .025 cents

4 per kWh?

5        A.   It does, yes.

6             MR. JENKINS:  I would move this Commercial

7 Group Cross Exhibit 1 into the record.

8             MR. KENNEDY:  No objection from Company

9 counsel.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.  Then Commercial

11 Group Cross Exhibit 1 is entered into evidence.

12                   (Commercial Group Cross Exhibit 1

13                    admitted.)

14 BY MR. JENKINS:

15        Q.   Now, Mr. Jones, is it true that there are

16 various proposals in this proceeding for mainly how to

17 address the EDT disparity among rate classes and

18 subclasses; is that correct?

19        A.   Yes, that's correct.

20        Q.   You have Mr. Rubin's proposal that

21 essentially says we should go at the end of this case

22 to the same EDT charge for all customers, right?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   And we have another approach by the
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1 IIEC that was tabulated in IIEC Exhibit 3.2; is that

2 right?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   And we -- you originally prepared an Ameren

5 Exhibit 1.2, the first of your tabulation of how rates

6 should be moved for uniformity, particularly with the

7 EDT charge, right?

8        A.   Yes, 1.2 shows the totality of all of the

9 proposed changes with the .05 cent per kW hour.

10        Q.   Okay.  Is it true then that Commercial

11 Group Cross Exhibit 1, the tables there were, other

12 than the substantive change from going from a .05

13 cents per kWh constraint to 02 -- .025 cents per kWh,

14 other than that substantive change, you use the same

15 methodology to create this exhibit as you used in

16 Ameren Exhibit 1.2?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Now, if you could turn to your rebuttal

19 testimony, Ameren Exhibit 4.0, page 17, and you have

20 three tables here as well.  What are you trying to

21 show in these three tables on page 17 and 18?

22        A.   Yeah.  Bottom of page 17 shows the average

23 cents per kW hour rate paid by DS-4 customers in each

24 of these supply voltage categories.  The table on top
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1 of page 18 shows the average rate that would be paid

2 under the first iteration of the Company's proposal,

3 so, in fact, would be the proposed realizations based

4 on the revenue-neutral rate design proposal, and then

5 the third table is looking at the difference between

6 the -- the existing realization and the proposed

7 scenario realization.

8        Q.   And I believe you pointed out that in all

9 three Rate Zones among the DS-4 subclasses, the

10 primary subclass would receive a larger cents per kWh

11 increase than the other subclasses under Ameren's

12 original proposal, right?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   And is it true that -- Well, let's back up.

15 Would you agree when the Commission and your Honor

16 evaluates this issue there's a number of fairness

17 issues that might be looked at?  Would you agree to

18 that principle, first of all?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   The AG -- Would you agree the AG feel it's

21 a fairness issue of customers paying a different rate

22 for EDT charge based on what class they're in?

23        A.   I'm sorry, could I have that --

24        Q.   Yeah.  Would you agree that from the AG's
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1 perspective or Witness Rubin, you see some unfairness

2 of different customers and different classes than some

3 subclasses paying a different EDT, charge?

4        A.   Yes, I agree that is my understanding of

5 Mr. Rubin's testimony on this issue.

6        Q.   And the industrial customers, mainly in the

7 IIEC group, tends to see an unfairness in excessively

8 large total increase; would that be fair to say?

9        A.   The total in terms of percentage, yes,

10 their concern seems to be couched in terms of

11 percentages.

12        Q.   And customers maybe in the DS-3, DS-4

13 primary subclass as you pointed out might see an

14 unfairness in paying a larger cents per kWh increase

15 than other members of that sub -- of that class?  That

16 might be another view of fairness, right?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   If I could point you to one more back in

19 your Ameren Exhibit 1.2, and let's just look at Rate

20 Zone I, page 1 and then on page 2.  The last column

21 that says percent on page 1, do you see that?

22        A.   I do.

23        Q.   Let's look under DS-3 primary voltage.

24 When it says there it should be a negative 4.38
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1 percent --

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   -- difference, what does that mean in that

4 context?

5        A.   That means if we were to not have any sort

6 of revenue allocation constraint and go simply to

7 recovering each class's or subclass's cost

8 responsibility, the DS-3 primary voltage would be

9 targeted to receive a 4.38 percent rate decrease.

10        Q.   Okay.  If you go to next page, page 2, if

11 you look at the same column percent for the DS-3

12 primary voltage under the first Ameren proposal, what

13 would be the end result?  I guess it's down at line

14 91.

15        A.   That's correct.  Because of the

16 constraints, this customer class would need to pick up

17 some of the mitigating that had been done for the

18 other classes, and the result would be a 4.36 percent

19 increase.

20        Q.   So you can understand the customer on DS-3

21 rate seeing that they should get a rate decrease from

22 this case if they received the rate increase, they

23 would also have a perspective that this is unfair,

24 would they not?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   Now, all of these tables we've been

3 discussing, whether the IIEC table or Exhibit 3.2 or

4 the two tables you've presented that Ameren has put

5 forward, they all just show the results at the end of

6 this case, the first iteration; is that right?

7        A.   Yes, and it's not even a result that will

8 be used, it's simply indicative model of -- for what

9 we will use when we file our update case in April --

10 late April of next year for rates effective in

11 January, 2015.

12        Q.   Now, is it correct understanding of your

13 proposal both on the original one with the larger

14 third constraint on cents per kWh basis and the

15 Commercial Group Cross Exhibit 1 proposal that Ameren

16 has made, is the -- is the relevance of a third

17 constraint that cents per kWh, is that relevant just

18 for this case, or do you find there's some merit to it

19 as this is implemented and rates are implemented over

20 the next set of years?

21        A.   Yeah, the proposal is this is establishing

22 the methodology that would be used for each of the

23 following three formula update proceedings until we

24 initiate and discuss what to do with rates again three
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1 years from now.  So it would be used for our April,

2 '14 update, as well as in '15 and '16.

3        Q.   But what is it about that third constraint

4 though that you believe it's important to have going

5 forward as opposed to a -- let's say a proposal for

6 two constraints but maybe a larger band?  What is the

7 -- in the mechanics, what do you see in that vein?

8        A.   The importance of the third constraint in

9 the cents per kW hour, is it allows us to get away

10 from a percentage value which can lack meaning for a

11 very small cents per kW hour class that's paying very

12 small cents per kW hour today, and we're trying to

13 bridge a gap for a distribution tax that is five times

14 that base value.

15             So it allows you to address the -- the

16 issue for the +100 kV, and in some respect the high

17 voltage subclass for DS-4 without placing the other

18 classes in jeopardy for a higher percentage base

19 revenue allocation constraint.

20             So it will allow us to retain smaller

21 percentages mitigating potential negative consequences

22 as we move down the road next year and the year after

23 and the year after while still making appropriate step

24 toward achieving uniform distribution tax rate.
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1        Q.   Okay.  And is it true that Ameren would

2 support either your method described in Ameren Exhibit

3 1.2 or the method that you provide that is described

4 in Commercial Group Cross Exhibit 1?

5        A.   I think our proposal is the .05 cents per

6 kW hour, and the .025 is offered as an example if the

7 Commission feels that that pace of change is too

8 great.  So, you know, obviously we'll abide by

9 whatever the Commission decides, but our primary

10 position is the .025 -- or .05 cents per kW hour.

11             MR. JENKINS:  Thank you, nothing further.

12             MR. KENNEDY:  Your Honor, I need three

13 minutes.

14             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  We'll take a

15 three-minute break.

16                   (A break was taken.)

17             MR. KENNEDY:  The Company has no redirect,

18 your Honor.  We'd like to, if the other parties

19 permit, do two preliminary things, move in an

20 affidavit and move in some DRs with the AG because the

21 AG counsel may depart at some point in this

22 proceeding.

23             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I've not ruled yet on

24 admitting the testimony, and I was going to ask if you
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1 will be filing an errata regarding the corrections or

2 changes to Mr. Jones' testimony, his rebuttal

3 testimony?

4             MR. KENNEDY:  Yes, he had some changes for

5 his direct and rebuttal, and we will file an errata

6 for those changes.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Having heard Mr. Jones

8 cross-examination testimony, does anyone have any

9 objections to his direct, rebuttal, and surrebuttal

10 testimony and exhibits?

11                   (No response.)

12             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing none, Ameren

13 Exhibit 1.0, the direct testimony of Mr. Jones, and

14 Exhibits 1.1 through 1.4 were attached to the direct

15 testimony of Mr. Jones, Ameren Exhibit 4.0, the

16 rebuttal testimony of Mr. Jones with attached Exhibits

17 4.1 through 4.3, and Ameren Exhibit 7.0, the

18 surrebuttal testimony of Mr. Jones with attached

19 Exhibits 7.1 are entered into evidence.

20                   (Ameren Exhibits 4.0, 4.1, 4.2,

21                    4.3, 7.0, and 7.1 admitted.)

22             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Kennedy, you

23 have some --

24             MR. KENNEDY:  If the Company may, your
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1 Honor, we'd like to move the admission of the exhibits

2 and affidavit of Mr. Steven D. Martin.  Those are as

3 follows Ameren Exhibit 3.0, direct testimony of Steven

4 D. Martin with attachments Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 with

5 the supporting exhibits for direct testimony of Steven

6 D. Martin.  Those were filed July 22, 2013.  We also

7 have Mr. Martin's rebuttal testimony Ameren Exhibit

8 6.0 with supporting exhibits Ameren Exhibit 6.1, and

9 6.2, which were filed with his rebuttal on November 6,

10 2013, and then the affidavit of Mr. Martin is Ameren

11 Exhibit 6.3, which is previously filed on Commission

12 e-Docket, and that was filed December 6, 2013.  We'd

13 like to formally move those into evidence now.

14             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any objections

15 to Mr. Martin's testimony and exhibits?

16                   (No response.)

17             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing no objections,

18 the direct testimony of Ameren Exhibit 3.0 with

19 attachment 3.1 through 3.2, the rebuttal testimony of

20 Ameren Exhibit 6.0 with attachment 6.1 through 6.2,

21 and the affidavit of Mr. Martin, Ameren Exhibit 6.3,

22 are entered into evidence.

23                   (Ameren Exhibits 3.0, 3.1, 3.2, 6.0,

24                     6.1, 6.2, and 6.3 admitted.)
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1             MR. KENNEDY:  If it please your Honor, we

2 also have in addition some DRs that were sponsored by

3 AG Witness Mr. Rubin, we've asked for the admission of

4 in lieu of Mr. Rubin's cross.  These are called AIC

5 Cross Exhibit 1, and I'll read these into the record

6 so it's clear which ones they include, your Honor.

7 All of these are encaptioned AIC AG with a number that

8 follows.  So AIC Cross Exhibit 1 contains the

9 following DRs, AIC AG, 1.07, 1.08, 1.13, 1.14, 2.02,

10 2.05, 2.06, 2.07, 3.01, 3.02, 3.05, 3.06, 3.07, 3.08,

11 3.09, 3.10, 4.01, 4.02, 4.03, 4.04, 4.08, 4.12, 4.13,

12 4.15, 4.18, and 4.21, and we will go ahead and file

13 that on e-Docket as well.  So we'd like to formally

14 move that packet of DRs into the record.

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any objections

16 to AIC Cross Exhibit 1?

17                   (No response.)

18             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing no objection,

19 AIC Cross Exhibit 1 is entered into evidence.

20                   (AIC Cross Exhibit 1 admitted.)

21             MR. KENNEDY:  And that was the only other

22 preliminary matter that we had.

23             MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, if I may, I'd like

24 to move now for the admission into evidence of the
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1 testimony of AG Witness Rubin and his affidavit.  Mr.

2 Scott J. Rubin's direct testimony on behalf of the

3 People of the State of Illinois was filed on e-Docket

4 on October 17, 2013.  That's AG Exhibit 1.0,

5 accompanied by Exhibits 1.01 through 1.14.  Mr.

6 Rubin's rebuttal testimony AG Exhibit 2.0 was filed on

7 e-Docket on November 27, 2013, accompanied by Exhibits

8 AG Exhibit 2.1 and AG Exhibit 2.2.  And Mr. Rubin's

9 affidavit, which is AG Exhibit 3.0 was filed on

10 e-Docket yesterday December 10, 2013.  I'd like to

11 formally move now for the admission of Mr. Rubin's

12 testimony into the record.

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any objections

14 to Mr. Rubin's testimony?

15                   (No response.)

16             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing none, AG Exhibit

17 1.0 with attached Exhibits 1.0 through 1.14 -- I'm

18 sorry 1.01 through 1.14, and Mr. Rubin's rebuttal

19 testimony, which is AG Exhibit 2.0 with attached

20 Exhibit 2.1 through 2.2 and the affidavit of Mr. Rubin

21 which is identified as AG Exhibit 3.0 are admitted

22 into evidence.

23                   (AG Exhibit 1.0, 1.01-1.14, 2.0,

24                    2.1, 2.2, and 3.0 admitted.)
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1             MR. LANNON:  I guess at this point, your

2 Honor, Staff would like to call what I believe is the

3 last live witness here, Mr. Phillip Rukosuev.

4             MR. KENNEDY:  Second witness.

5             MR. JENKINS:  Got one dead witness over

6 here.

7             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  He's old, but he's not

8 dead.

9             MR. LANNON:  Well, Bill's a little

10 livelier.

11             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All things being

12 relative.

13             MR. LANNON:  My apologies, sir.

14             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Mr.

15 Rukosuev, you were sworn previously, correct?

16             MR. RUKOSUEV:  That's correct.

17             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You may proceed.

18                  *    *    *    *    *

19                    PHILLIP RUKOSUEV,

20 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

21 follows:

22                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

23 QUESTIONS BY MR. LANNON:

24        Q.   Can you tell us your full name, spelling
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1 your last name.

2        A.   My name is Phillip Rukosuev,

3 R-u-k-o-s-u-e-v.

4        Q.   And who is your employer?

5        A.   I'm employed with the ICC, and my business

6 address is 527 East Capitol Avenue, Springfield,

7 Illinois 62701.

8        Q.   And what's your position at the Commission?

9        A.   I'm a rate analyst.

10        Q.   And have you prepared pre-filed exhibits to

11 be submitted in this proceeding?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Do you have before you a document marked

14 for identification as ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0C, C for

15 corrected, which consists of a cover page, a table of

16 contents, 38 pages of narrative testimony?  Do you

17 have that in front of you?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   And did you prepare that document for

20 presentation?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   And do you have before you a document

23 marked for identification as ICC Staff Exhibit 4.0

24 consisting of a cover page, table of contents, 27
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1 pages of narrative testimony entitled Rebuttal

2 Testimony, Phillip Rukosuev?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   And did you prepare that document?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Do you have any corrections to make to

7 either ICC Staff Exhibits 1.0C or 4.0?

8        A.   No.

9        Q.   And is the information contained in ICC

10 Staff Exhibits 1.0C and 4.0 true and correct to the

11 best of your knowledge?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   If I were to ask the same questions as set

14 forth in those exhibits, will your responses be the

15 same today?

16        A.   Yes.

17             MR. LANNON:  Your Honor, pending

18 cross-examination, I move for admission into evidence

19 of Staff Exhibits 1.0C and 4.0.

20             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  I'll wait to

21 rule on that until we've had cross-examination.  Mr.

22 Dearmont.

23             MR. DEARMONT:  Thank you.

24                    CROSS-EXAMINATION
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1 QUESTIONS BY MR. DEARMONT:

2        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Rukosuev.

3        A.   Good afternoon.

4             MR. DEARMONT:  May I approach, Judge?

5             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You may.

6 BY MR. DEARMONT:

7        Q.   I'm going to hand you what has been marked

8 as AIC Cross Exhibit 2.  Here's one for you as well.

9 I do intend to offer that.  Are you familiar with this

10 document?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   Okay.  And, in fact, it is a response to a

13 discovery request labeled AIC Staff 9.01, correct?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Okay.  And you personally responded to this

16 discovery request?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   And you would agree this discovery request

19 response deals with an issue tied to the proper way to

20 treat EDT reconciliation true-up amounts?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Do you believe that Staff and the Company

23 have reached an agreement with respect to the

24 treatment of those amounts?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   And that agreement is embodied in the

3 response to this discovery request?

4        A.   Yes.

5             MR. DEARMONT:  At this time I would move

6 for admission of what has been marked as AIC Cross

7 Exhibit 2?

8             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any

9 objections?

10             MR. LANNON:  No objection.

11             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing no objection,

12 AIC Cross Exhibit 2 is admitted into evidence.

13                   (AIC Cross Exhibit 2 admitted.)

14             MR. DEARMONT:  May I approach once more,

15 Judge?

16             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

17 BY MR. DEARMONT:

18        Q.   Co-counsel has handed you what has been

19 marked AIC Cross Exhibit 3, correct?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Are you familiar with this document?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Okay.  And this document pertains to an

24 issue that yourself and Mr. Schonhoff have debated at
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1 great length in this proceeding dealing with proper

2 way in which to allocate the primary distribution

3 lines, correct?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   Has Staff and the Company reached an

6 agreement on this issue which has culminated in what

7 I'll refer to as a modified primary line allocator?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   And is that agreement and that proposed

10 allocator contained on AIC Cross Exhibit 3?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   So the record is clear, the modified

13 primary line allocator would for classes DS-1, 2, 3,

14 and 4 allocate primary lines based on CP demands,

15 correct?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   For the DS-6 class, it will allocate

18 primary lines equal to the percentage derived under

19 the use of the NCP method, correct?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   And for the DS-5 street lighting class, it

22 will allocate primary lines equal to 50 percent of the

23 value derived using the NCP method, which is

24 approximately equal to the value derived using the 12
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1 CP method?

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   Okay.  You believe this modified primary

4 line allocator to be a reasonable approach to

5 resolution of this issue?

6        A.   Yes.

7             MR. DEARMONT:  I would move for admission

8 of what has been marked as AIC Cross Exhibit 3.

9             MR. LANNON:  No objection.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  AIC Cross Exhibit 3 is

11 admitted into evidence.

12                   (AIC Cross Exhibit 3 admitted.)

13 BY MR. DEARMONT:

14        Q.   The last issue I want to discuss with you

15 this afternoon deals with the Company's proposed

16 three-tier revenue allocation approach.  Are you

17 familiar with that issue?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   You'll agree with me that the DS-4 class

20 has enjoyed a relatively prolonged subsidy period?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   You agree that that class subsidy should

23 not remain in place much longer?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   You agree that by eliminating the first

2 tier of the Company's proposed rate mitigation

3 proposal, that slows the elimination of that subsidy;

4 in other words, that is the practical effect of going

5 from a three-tier approach to a two-tier approach?

6             MR. LANNON:  Before he answers, I'd like --

7 Just so the record is clear, are you saying do you

8 agree or are you making a statement that he does

9 agree?  I think I heard something different.

10             MR. DEARMONT:  I'm making a statement with

11 a question mark at the end.

12             MR. LANNON:  Okay.

13 BY MR. DEARMONT:

14        Q.   So let me rephrase that.  Would you agree

15 that eliminating the first tier of the Company's

16 revenue allocation proposal slows the elimination of

17 the DS-4 class subsidy?

18        A.   Subject to check, yes, and the reason I'm

19 saying that is because I don't have the testimony of

20 the IIEC witness in front of me, but I think there was

21 a -- there was certain disagreement about what is the

22 -- what is the difference between the approach AIC is

23 taking and the modified approach that IIEC is

24 proposing as far as how many years will actually take
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1 for the subsidy to, you know, go away, but subject to

2 check I will agree.

3        Q.   Correct.  And I think that we're going to

4 develop that discussion a little bit further here.

5 Thank you.  You mentioned the position of the IIEC.  I

6 believe it's authored by Mr. Stephens.  Do you know

7 what I'm referring to if I refer to Mr. Stephens'

8 middle ground approach on this issue?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree with me that under

11 Mr. Stephens' middle ground approach, assuming a 20

12 percent annual increase, it would take Rate Zone I ten

13 iterations to achieve a uniform EDT cost recovery

14 charge all else equal for DS-4 +100 kV supply

15 customers?

16        A.   Subject to check, yes.

17        Q.   And for Rate Zone III, it would take

18 approximately nine iterations all else equal subject

19 to check?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   It's been discussed already this afternoon,

22 but you understand, do you not, that the Company has

23 suggested an alternate approach that would maintain

24 the three-tier proposal that would -- that would
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1 decrease the first tier from an allowable maximum .05

2 cent per kW hour increase to an allowable maximum of

3 .025 cent per kW hour increase, correct?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   You agree that that proposal would work to

6 reduce EDT subsidies in approximately five iterations?

7        A.   Subject to check, yes.

8        Q.   Do you agree that the class such as the

9 DS-4 class pays a nominal delivery service and

10 distribution tax charge that even a relatively small

11 cent per kW hour increase could result in a large

12 percentage increase?

13        A.   Would you explain what you mean by nominal?

14        Q.   Sure.  And actually -- Forgive me, give me

15 just one second here.  May I approach one last time,

16 Judge?

17             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You may.

18             MR. DEARMONT:  And are we on Cross Exhibit

19 4?

20             MR. LANNON:  Yep.

21             THE WITNESS:  The last one I got was 3.

22 BY MR. DEARMONT:

23        Q.   Right.  I'm going to hand you what has been

24 marked as AIC Cross Exhibit 4.  Give me just one
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1 second.  That is the response to a data request

2 labeled AIC Staff 8.02, correct?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   If you don't mind, I'd like to ask the last

5 question perhaps one more time.  Referring to -- Well,

6 excuse me.  Do you agree that the class such as the

7 DS-4 class pays a nominal delivery service and

8 distribution tax charge that even a relatively small

9 cents per kW hour increase could result in a large

10 percentage increase?

11             MR. LANNON:  Objection.  I don't mean to

12 slow things down, but if we could please just explain

13 the word nominal.  I know he's already answered it

14 once, but he asked for an explanation of that word.

15 BY MR. DEARMONT:

16        Q.   Okay.  Did you prepare this response?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Do you still agree with the answer?

19        A.   Yes.

20             MR. DEARMONT:  I'm going to move for

21 admission of what has been marked as AIC Cross Exhibit

22 4.

23             MR. LANNON:  No objection.

24             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  No objection.  The AIC
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1 Cross Exhibit 4 is admitted.

2                   (AIC Cross Exhibit 4 admitted.)

3             MR. DEARMONT:  Judge, if you'll give me 30

4 seconds to review my notes, I may actually be done.

5             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.

6             MR. DEARMONT:  No further questions.  Thank

7 you.  Thank you, Mr. Rukosuev.

8             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

9             MR. DEARMONT:  Thank you.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Robertson.

11             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  I don't have any

12 cross.

13             MR. LANNON:  I just want to do one quick

14 redirect.

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  I do have a

16 question for Mr. Rukosuev.

17             MR. LANNON:  Oh, I'm sorry, your Honor.

18                       EXAMINATION

19 QUESTIONS BY JUDGE VON QUALEN:

20        Q.   Mr. Rukosuev, did you read Mr. Stephens'

21 rebuttal testimony, and are you familiar with the

22 proposal regarding assignment of single phase facility

23 costs to secondary voltage customers?

24        A.   I -- I didn't testify on that issue.
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1        Q.   I didn't ask you that.  I saw that you

2 didn't testify on it actually.

3        A.   Yeah.

4        Q.   My question is did you read that testimony?

5        A.   I read the testimony but only the part that

6 was relevant to what I was discussing.

7        Q.   Really?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   All right.  So do you have any opinion

10 about Mr. Stephens' proposal regarding single phase

11 facility costs to secondary voltage customers?

12        A.   No.

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.  That concludes my

14 questions.

15             MR. LANNON:  Beyond the scope.  That wasn't

16 on the record.  I have a little redirect --

17             MR. KENNEDY:  You may.

18             MR. LANNON:  -- if it is that time.

19             MR. KENNEDY:  It is that time.

20                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION

21 QUESTIONS BY MR. LANNON:

22        Q.   Mr. Rukosuev, Ameren counsel, Mr. Dearmont,

23 asked you about AIC Cross Exhibit 4, which you had

24 already responded to once before; is that correct --
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   -- in writing?  And he asked you the same

3 question here today, and I believe you said something

4 along the lines of could you explain the word nominal

5 to me?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   Do you want to explain to us what your

8 meaning of the word nominal means so that the record

9 is clear and the Judge knows the context in which you

10 answered this discovery response.

11        A.   Well, to simplify, basically when I was

12 answering this DR, as I was reviewing testimony, from

13 what I understand from Mr. Jones' testimony, I believe

14 the context is that nominal means essentially very

15 small.  So if you change from a small to a small, you

16 know, dollar to two dollars, it might be a hundred

17 percent, for example.  That does not mean much, but

18 from small to small might show a big percentage, but

19 that nominal might be very many.  That's what I

20 understand nominal came into context.

21        Q.   And you answered that DR with that

22 knowledge of the meaning of nominal?

23        A.   Yes, as I understand.

24             MR. LANNON:  Thank you.  That's all.
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1             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Any recross?

2             MR. DEARMONT:  No recross.

3             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you, Mr. Rukosuev.

4             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

5             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  We have AIC Cross

6 Exhibits 2, 3, and 4.  Are you going to be filing

7 those on e-Docket also?

8             MR. DEARMONT:  Yes.

9             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And we have Mr.

10 Rukosuev's testimony.  Are there any objections to Mr.

11 Rukosuev's direct or rebuttal testimony?

12                   (No response.)

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing none, ICC Staff

14 Exhibit 1.0C, corrected direct testimony of Mr.

15 Rukosuev, and ICC Staff Exhibit 4.0, the rebuttal

16 testimony of Mr. Rukosuev, are admitted into evidence.

17                   (ICC Staff Exhibits 1.0C and 4.0

18                    admitted.)

19             MR. LANNON:  Thank you, your Honor.

20             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Your Honor, before we

21 present Mr. Stephens, could we have about a

22 five-minute break?

23             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.  Let's take a

24 five-minute break, and we'll come back at 3:00.



141

1                   (A break was taken.)

2             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Back on the record.

3             MS. SWAN:  All right.  Thank you, your

4 Honor.  On October 17, 2013, Staff filed on e-Docket

5 the direct testimony of Cheri Harden --

6             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You'll have to speak up

7 a little.  All right.

8             MS. SWAN:  Your Honor, is this better?

9             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Try again.

10             MS. SWAN:  Is this better, your Honor?

11             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

12             MS. SWAN:  On October 17, 2013, Staff filed

13 on e-Docket the direct testimony of Cheri Harden,

14 which is marked as ICC Staff Exhibit 2.0 and includes

15 attachments A through C, and on November 27, 2013,

16 Staff filed on e-Docket the rebuttal testimony of

17 Cheri Harden, which is marked as ICC Staff Exhibit

18 5.0.  On December 10th, 2013, in support of those

19 exhibits, Staff filed on e-Docket the affidavit of

20 Cheri Harden, which is marked as ICC Staff Exhibit

21 7.0.  On October 23rd, 2013, Staff filed on e-Docket

22 the corrected direct testimony of Mary Everson, which

23 is marked as ICC Staff Exhibit 3.0C, and on November

24 27th, 2013, Staff filed on e-Docket, the rebuttal
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1 testimony of Mary Everson, which is marked as ICC

2 Staff Exhibit 6.0.  On December 10th, 2013, in support

3 of those exhibits, Staff filed on e-Docket the

4 affidavit of Mary Everson which was marked as ICC

5 Staff Exhibit 8.0.  Staff moves for the admission into

6 the record ICC Staff Exhibits 2.0, 3.0C --

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You're cutting out.

8             MS. SWAN:  I'm sorry.  Staff moves for the

9 admission into the record of ICC Staff Exhibit 2.0,

10 3.0C, 5.0, 6.0, 7.0, and 8.0.

11             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any objections

12 to the testimony of Ms. Harden or Ms. Everson?

13                   (No response.)

14             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing no objection,

15 ICC Staff Exhibits 2.0, 5.0, 7.0 of Ms. Harden and

16 Staff ICC Staff Exhibits 3.0C, 6.0 and 8.0 of Ms.

17 Everson are entered into evidence.

18                   (ICC Staff Exhibits 2.0, 5.0, 7.0,

19                    3.0C, 6.0, and 8.0 admitted.)

20             MS. SWAN:  Thank you, your Honor.

21             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.  Mr.

22 Robertson.

23             MR. KENNEDY:  Could we go off the record

24 for a second?
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1             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Let's go off the record.

2                   (Discussion off the record.)

3             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Back on the record.

4             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Yes.  Your Honor,

5 without going into all the detail, we were -- the

6 agreement between the Staff and the Company was new to

7 us today, and when the Cross Exhibit --

8             MR. JENKINS:  3.

9             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Cross Exhibit 3 was

10 introduced, we had been operating on apparently

11 mistaken assumption that the proposal that Mr.

12 Schonhoff had made in his surrebuttal on the

13 modification of the NCP/CP issue was the position of

14 the Company and didn't know exactly where the Staff

15 stood on this.  This exhibit shows a treatment of that

16 issue that is in our opinion substantially different

17 from that which was represented in Mr. Schonhoff's

18 surrebuttal testimony, and to -- because of that, we

19 would like to reserve the right to recall Mr.

20 Schonhoff once we've had a chance to analyze this

21 agreement as represented by AIC Exhibit 3 and cross

22 him with regard to the issue.  Maybe once the hearing

23 is over today, we will be able to -- we may decide

24 that we -- we don't need to cross him, and we don't
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1 need to ask him to come back, but if we did that, it

2 may -- we would ask you to leave the record open so

3 that he could appear again, be sworn and crossed on

4 this limited issue, and to do so in sufficient time

5 for people to comply with briefing schedule that's

6 been established in this case.

7                   The other thing that I -- that it is

8 my understanding, and I assume that the Company agrees

9 that this document does, in fact, represent a proposal

10 on the treatment of the NCP/CP issue that is different

11 from the -- from the proposal that Mr. Schonhoff made

12 in his surrebuttal testimony.

13             MR. KENNEDY:  I can speak to that.

14             MR. LANNON:  Would you mind if I went

15 first --

16             MR. KENNEDY:  Go right ahead.

17             MR. LANNON:  -- just because he's talking

18 about something that we did at the last minute, and

19 I'd like to apologize to the parties that weren't

20 involved in that, but due to the nature of the

21 schedule where we just get your surrebuttal on Friday

22 and we're trying to figure everything out, we only got

23 this today actually, and we thought it was a good

24 deal, and as the Staff of the Commerce Commission, we
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1 felt compelled to agree to it at the time, which we

2 understand was very late, but we felt we had an

3 obligation to come forward, and to take -- to agree

4 with this because as our expert testified, he thought

5 it was the best solution for the CP/NCP.

6                   Now I don't have any objection to

7 anything Mr. Erickson asked for, and, in fact, before

8 the Company goes, this is what I wanted to step in, I

9 understand that if their person is probably going to

10 get -- have some more cross on, they may want Mr.

11 Rukosuev back on the stand, and we will work with you

12 to accommodate that.

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Now, just so the record

14 is clear, what we're discussing is what was provided

15 in AIC Cross Exhibit 3?

16             MR. LANNON:  That's correct.

17             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Correct.

18             MR. KENNEDY:  Correct.

19             MR. LANNON:  Which, your Honor, we've had

20 discussions with the Company last three days, I think,

21 wasn't it?  Two days.

22             MR. KENNEDY:  Yes, I'll add my two cents

23 briefly.  I mean what transpired after we filed

24 surrebuttal is that Phillip -- Mr. Rukosuev submitted
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1 some DR, we received late yesterday at close of

2 business.  It indicated a different path to a

3 modification other than what Mr. Schonhoff had

4 proposed in his surrebuttal, and based on those DRs, I

5 think it was AIC Staff 8.06, the Company came up with

6 this proposal that we thought addressed his concerns

7 in that data response, presented it to the Staff today

8 for their review, and Mr. Robertson is correct, the

9 proposal is different from what Mr. Schonhoff proposed

10 in his surrebuttal and he was not aware of that until

11 AIC Cross Exhibit 3 was introduced into evidence.

12             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Robertson, you've

13 asked that the record be left open and that IIEC be

14 given an opportunity to cross Mr. Schonhoff again but

15 within a time frame that would allow for the remainder

16 of the schedule in this matter.  So I think that means

17 within the next couple days.  Do you have a date that

18 you're proposing?

19             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  I didn't because I

20 didn't remember what the schedule was.

21             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  The schedule provides

22 for initial briefs, as I have it and correct me if I'm

23 wrong, on January 6th.

24             MR. KENNEDY:  Correct.
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1             MR. DEARMONT:  Sounds right.

2             MR. KENNEDY:  In my estimation you would

3 have to have any additional hearing next week in order

4 for there to be sufficient time to complete the

5 schedule as agreed upon, and as Mr. Lannon indicated

6 we would want Staff witness present to take the stand

7 after Mr. Schonhoff in case we felt it necessary to

8 commit to do further cross, and at that point Mr.

9 Robertson would have some questions for the Staff

10 witnesses.  We can try to figure a day after or right

11 now if your Honor even entertains.  I'll note that Mr.

12 Schonhoff is still here.  But I understand that Mr.

13 Robertson and Mr. Jenkins simply did not have

14 sufficient time to prepare.

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  So, Mr. Robertson, do

16 you still intend to call Mr. Stephens this afternoon?

17             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Yes, I thought we'd

18 get that out of the way.

19             MR. KENNEDY:  I don't think my cross will

20 impact this issue.

21             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Would you like to go off

22 the record to discuss scheduling for and set aside

23 additional time for hearing next week now, or would

24 you like to wait until the end of this hearing today?
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1             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Maybe we could get Mr.

2 Stephens out of the way and then people can go home

3 and leave, and we can work out whatever schedule

4 modification we need.

5             MR. KENNEDY:  Right.  Perhaps Staff could

6 inquire in the meantime as to their witness's

7 availability.

8             MR. LANNON:  We'll try to find that out.

9             MR. KENNEDY:  Okay.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Let's

11 proceed.

12             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Thank you.

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You were previously

14 sworn?

15             MR. STEPHENS:  Yes, I was.

16             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Okay.

17             MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:  I was going to move

18 for the admission of the testimony and exhibits of

19 IIEC witness Amanda Alderson who no one has cross for,

20 and I was going to ask permission to do so before I

21 presented Mr. Stephens.

22             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  That is fine.

23             MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

24 I'd like to move for the admission of the direct



149

1 testimony and exhibits of Amanda Alderson.  It's IIEC

2 2.0, IIEC Exhibit 2.1, Exhibit 2.2, and Exhibit 2.3 as

3 well as the rebuttal testimony of Amanda Alderson,

4 entitled IIEC Exhibit 4.0, and finally the affidavit

5 of Amanda Alderson entitled IIEC Exhibit 5.0, which

6 was filed on e-Docket this morning.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Are there any objections

8 to the direct or rebuttal testimony of Ms. Alderson?

9             MR. DEARMONT:  No objection.

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing no objections,

11 IIEC Exhibits 1.0 and 1.1 -- I'm sorry -- IIEC Exhibit

12 2.0, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.0, and 5.0 are admitted into

13 evidence.

14                   (IIEC Exhibits 2.0, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3,

15                    4.0 and 5.0 admitted.)

16             MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

17                  *    *    *    *    *

18                   ROBERT R. STEPHENS,

19 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified as

20 follows:

21                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

22 QUESTIONS BY MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:

23        Q.   Mr. Stephens, can you please state your

24 full name for the record.
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1        A.   Robert R. Stephens.

2        Q.   And who is your employer?

3        A.   Brubaker & Associates, Inc.

4        Q.   I'd like to direct your attention to what

5 has previously been marked for identification as IIEC

6 Exhibit 1.0 with attached IIEC Exhibit 1.1, which is

7 entitled the Direct Testimony and Exhibits of Robert

8 R. Stephens.  Do you have that in front of you?

9        A.   Yes, I do.

10        Q.   Is this testimony and exhibit prepared by

11 you or under your direction?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Do you have any corrections to this

14 testimony or exhibit today?

15        A.   No.

16        Q.   To the best of your knowledge is the

17 information contained in these exhibits true and

18 accurate?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

21 today that were posed in your testimony, you'd give

22 the same responses?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   I'd like to direct your attention to what
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1 has been previously marked for identification as IIEC

2 Exhibit 3.0C, with attached IIEC Exhibit 3.1 and 3.2,

3 which is titled Corrected Rebuttal Testimony and

4 exhibits of Robert R. Stephens.  Do you have that in

5 front of you?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   Was this testimony and exhibits prepared by

8 you or under your direction?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Do you have any corrections to the

11 testimony or exhibits today?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   And what are those corrections?

14        A.   First correction is on page 13 at line 297,

15 the figure 56 percent appears on that line.  That

16 figure should be 54 percent.  The second correction is

17 similar -- identical but it occurs on page 15 at line

18 332, and in line 332 I would change 56 percent to 54

19 percent.  As a result of that change I also need to

20 change line 341 on the same page where the current 44

21 percent is shown.  It would move up to 46 percent.

22 Those are all the corrections I have.

23        Q.   Thank you.  To the best of your knowledge

24 is the information now contained in the exhibits true
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1 and accurate?

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   If were to ask you the same questions today

4 that were posed in your testimony, would you give the

5 same response?

6        A.   Yes.

7             MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:  Your Honor, I would

8 like to offer at this time Mr. Stephens for

9 cross-examination and move for the admission into

10 evidence what has been previously marked as IIEC

11 Exhibit 1.0 with attachment 1.1 and IIEC 3.0C with

12 attachments 3.1 and 3.2?

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Does Ameren

14 have cross?

15             MR. KENNEDY:  Yes, your Honor, we do.

16                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

17 QUESTIONS BY MR. KENNEDY:

18        Q.   Good afternoon Mr. Stephens.

19        A.   Good afternoon.

20        Q.   My name is Chris Kennedy.  I'm counsel for

21 the Company.  I have a couple questions.  I'm going to

22 start with what I hope is a cleanup question on your

23 revenue allocation, and then I'm going to shift to

24 single phase and then back to allocation.
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1        A.   Okay.

2        Q.   Cleanup on the revenue allocation is if you

3 look at your rebuttal testimony IIEC Exhibit 3.0C --

4        A.   Okay.

5        Q.   -- lines 599 and 600, 5 -- I'm sorry.

6 Excuse me.  Yes.  Lines 599 and 600 on page 27.  Do

7 you see the sentence where you say, I also agree with

8 Mr. Jones modified version of my Table 3 which he

9 shows at page 16 lines 358 through 359?

10        A.   Yes.

11             MR. KENNEDY:  Just for convenience, I have

12 a copy here of that page.  I'd like to distribute it

13 if you don't mind, your Honor.  May I approach?

14             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

15 BY MR. KENNEDY:

16        Q.   What I'm giving the witness has been

17 previously marked for identification and admitted into

18 evidence as Ameren 4.0.  This is page 16 of 33, and

19 I'll represent to you, Mr. Stephens, that this is the

20 Table 3 which you refer to in page 27 of your rebuttal

21 testimony.  You've seen this table before?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   And you agree that the percentage -- you

24 agree with the percentages as outlined by Mr. Jones in
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1 that table?

2        A.   I don't dispute them.

3        Q.   Do you agree that the largest percentages

4 are in the hundred -- 100+ kV, and the triple -- the

5 only percentages that are triple digits are the 234

6 percent change for Rate Zone I and the 181 percent

7 change for Zone 3?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   In several places in your rebuttal

10 testimony, I'll point to particular lines, if you

11 could turn to line 394, the sentence actually starts

12 in line 393, you say, this is demonstrated in my

13 direct testimony indicated that Ameren's proposal

14 yields increases on the order of 200 percent to 300

15 percent for some rate -- for some rate subclasses.

16 And then further down, on line 404, 405 again you

17 discuss this range of 200 percent to 300 percent.

18             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I'm sorry, Mr. Kennedy,

19 where are you?

20             MR. KENNEDY:  Rebuttal testimony, 3.0C of

21 Mr. Stephens.  Lines 394 and then 405.

22             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Thank you.

23 BY MR. KENNEDY:

24        Q.   You would agree with me though that as we
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1 just discussed the highest percent increase that Mr.

2 Jones' table indicated is 234, and there's none that

3 reach 300 percent?

4        A.   No, not in Mr. Jones's table, no.  Yes, I

5 agree --

6        Q.   Okay.

7        A.   -- as relates to Mr. Jones' table.

8        Q.   And if you can turn to lines 717 of your

9 rebuttal testimony.  Again there's -- you discuss a

10 change in delivery service charges of 200 to 300

11 percent increase.  Can we agree that the largest

12 change to the DS-4 under kV subclass that Mr. Jones's

13 is proposing the 234 percent change?

14        A.   The way Mr. Jones presented the

15 information, yes, that's correct.

16        Q.   Thank you.  I'd like to shift for a second

17 to single phase, three-phase.  Just had a couple

18 questions about that.

19        A.   Okay.

20        Q.   I believe your position is that the

21 three-phase network for the utility -- a hypothetical

22 utility would exist even absent customers at the

23 primary voltage existing that would take three-phase

24 service; is that correct?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   You would agree with me in that

3 hypothetical situation where there's no primary

4 customers in the utility service area taking

5 three-phase service that that hypothetical is not the

6 situation that faces Ameren in that there are existing

7 primary voltage users that take three-phase service?

8        A.   It's not really the hypothetical we posed.

9 The hypothetical we posed was whether there existed

10 any primary service customers who are also because of

11 the circumstances at Ameren are also three-phase.  So

12 with that clarification, I believe the answer is yes.

13        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that every utility's

14 three-phase network is going to be a function or

15 dependent upon the service territory and the customer

16 density in that territory?

17        A.   What do you mean by is going to be a

18 function of?

19        Q.   In that the three-phase network will be

20 dependent upon the composition of customers, the

21 density of the customers that are in that territory

22 taking service from that utility?

23        A.   Do you mean the number of miles of three-

24 phase line?
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1        Q.   Yes.

2        A.   Certainly the more broadly the service

3 territory is spread out geographically and the nature

4 of the loads within those load pockets across the

5 region, that definitely could have an impact on how

6 much of the load is carried at three-phase versus

7 single phase.

8        Q.   And you would expect that every electric

9 distribution utility, whether it's in Illinois or

10 other jurisdictions, would have a slightly different

11 mix of three-phase and single phase distribution

12 facilities depending on the composition of their

13 territory and the customer density, customer base?

14        A.   Well, I hate to agree anything that

15 involves every utility because I've not looked at

16 every utility, and also I'd hate to agree to something

17 that says they're slightly different because they

18 could be majorly different.  If they were exactly the

19 same, that would be coincidence.

20        Q.   So absent that coincidence you wouldn't

21 expect to find two exact same three-phase/single phase

22 distribution system?

23        A.   The extent of how much three-phase is

24 versus single phase is correct, but I would still
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1 expect nearly every utility to have both three-phase

2 and single phase facilities.

3        Q.   And in this instance I know you provided

4 some testimony in the Commonwealth Edison rate

5 redesign case on this same issue; is that correct?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   And I believe that the composition of

8 primary -- of single phase facilities that you think

9 should be assigned to secondary customers is a

10 different percentage than -- although you're

11 recommending the same ten to 20 percent, your data

12 shows a slightly different percentage of single phase

13 facilities that are being served exclusively by

14 secondary customers?

15        A.   I don't have figures for the Commonwealth

16 Edison case in mind, but my recollection is that their

17 records did not allow as clear a definition of single

18 phase versus three-phase facilities as Ameren did.

19 Part of my recommendation in the Commonwealth Edison

20 case is for that issue to be examined more closely in

21 order to determine with more specificity what that

22 breakout would be.  Therefore, I can't, as I sit here,

23 say whether or not it would be significantly different

24 from Ameren's or not.
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1        Q.   But that would be based on your review of

2 the utility records and whatever records Commonwealth

3 Edison may have versus whatever records Ameren may

4 have?

5        A.   That's somewhat of an open question because

6 part of the learning process that I've recommended

7 through an investigation workshop is to determine the

8 best way to come to those numbers rather than just try

9 to impose my own method.  Certainly, I would expect

10 that looking at utility records would be a part of

11 that process.

12        Q.   Do you agree that a change -- Well, do you

13 agree that the distribution -- that Ameren's

14 distribution system, its single phase/three-phase

15 system specifically is not a static facility in the

16 sense that there will be changes over time to the

17 single phase and three-phase system?

18        A.   Are you considering the primary system

19 only?

20        Q.   Primary system only.

21        A.   I would expect there to be some modest

22 changes over time.  However, given that the vast

23 majority of their network already exists, you would

24 have to assume that any additions to the network would
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1 have significantly different ratios from the existing

2 proportions in order to say that it will change by

3 very much over time.  I don't think that's a very

4 realistic assumption.  So I think that it is

5 relatively static but not absolutely static.

6        Q.   Do you agree that the workshop -- the

7 second phase of your workshop where you would look at

8 potentially coming up with a more refined estimate of

9 single phase system cost to assign primary to

10 secondary users, you would agree that that would be

11 looking at a snapshot of Ameren's utility system at a

12 point in time?

13        A.   Not necessarily.

14        Q.   If not -- if not at a point of time, what

15 would you consider -- how would you come about looking

16 at the cost to determine, you know, what that more

17 refined would be?

18        A.   I would hope that the workshop process

19 would outline the method and the timing for taking a

20 look at those things, and it might be that the studies

21 conducted, if that's what it comes to, would occur,

22 you know, every three years, much like the cost of

23 service studies are performed.  Really nothing is

24 static in rate-setting process.  Everything changes.
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1 So similar to that, I wouldn't expect that the single

2 phase primary versus three-phase primary to remain

3 exactly the same, and it may be necessary to restudy

4 that from time to time just as you restudy utility

5 costs of capital, their cost of service generally,

6 their expenses.  As I said, nothing stays static from

7 case to case.

8        Q.   Do you agree that there would be an expense

9 associated with doing that study every three years,

10 undefined at this point obviously, estimate?

11        A.   Yeah, there's no way to know if that would

12 be an expensive endeavor or not, but I suppose if Mr.

13 Schonhoff spends one day on it, there's an expense or

14 some other Ameren employee.  I just don't know if it's

15 significant or not.

16        Q.   To the extent that the Company had to hire

17 independent consultants that were not Ameren

18 employees, there would obviously be a non-labor

19 expense associated with that vendor?

20        A.   It's possible.

21        Q.   I'd like to go back to transition you away

22 from that.  I don't -- I won't ask you anything more

23 about single phase, and go back to revenue allocation

24 that you're proposing in this case.  If you could look
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1 at your rebuttal testimony, page 18.  So Exhibit --

2 again 3.0C, corrected, the Q and A starts at 396 to

3 409.

4        A.   I have that.

5        Q.   Your position in this case is that Ameren's

6 proposal as presented in Mr. Jones' direct doesn't

7 maintain gradualism and doesn't avoid rate shock; is

8 that a fair characterization of your testimony about

9 his proposal?

10        A.   Yes.  I state that almost explicitly at 404

11 through 405.

12        Q.   And you proposed in your rebuttal a middle

13 ground position, correct?

14        A.   I termed it middle ground, yes.

15        Q.   And I'm taking from this Q and A where you

16 discuss Mr. Jones' position, quote, does not make

17 significant enough progress towards cost-based rates.

18 Are you implying that -- that you believe your

19 position does make significant progress towards

20 cost-based rates?

21             Let me withdraw that question because I

22 stated it incorrectly.  I read your Q and A as

23 implying that you're proposing a middle ground

24 position that you believe would constitute significant
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1 enough progress towards cost-based rates while

2 maintaining gradualism and avoiding rate shock.  Is

3 that a fair characterization?

4        A.   It's certainly better than Ameren's

5 proposal.  I -- Frankly, a 20 percent increase every

6 year isn't very gradual, and there could be some rate

7 shock.  That's a significant increase.

8        Q.   Towards cost-based rates?

9        A.   Period.  It doesn't really matter.  It's

10 towards cost-based rates in this context.  Rate

11 moderation has much more to do with abruptness of

12 change and extent of change than it has to do with

13 whether current rates are cost-based or the end rates

14 are cost-based.  It's about how fast it is and how

15 much is the change.

16        Q.   Well, I would ask you though that there is

17 a difference between what you would characterize as

18 significant increase and what I would say would be

19 significant progress towards cost-based rates.  Are

20 you saying that your proposal avoids significant

21 increase and also makes in your estimation significant

22 progress towards cost-based rates, or are you saying

23 that your proposal just avoids significant increase?

24        A.   I would characterize my proposal as
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1 avoiding outrageous increases and making progress

2 toward cost-based rates in the balance.

3        Q.   Maybe not significant enough progress?

4        A.   I think it's about all that customers can

5 handle.

6        Q.   In Mr. -- I don't know if you had a copy of

7 Mr. Jones' surrebuttal in front of you.  I'm just

8 going to state, and you can disagree if you disagree

9 with this.  In his surrebuttal he says that under your

10 modified approach, EDT uniformity would take ten

11 iterations for Rate Zone I, four iterations for Rate

12 Zone II, nine iterations for Rate Zone III.  First of

13 all, did you read Mr. Jones' surrebuttal?

14        A.   I did.

15        Q.   And if I represent those numbers to you

16 subject to check, do you have any disagreement with

17 his characterization of the number of iterations it

18 would take to reach equalized EDT uniformity?

19        A.   Yes, I do have some reservations about them

20 because Mr. Jones -- Let me start that sentence over.

21 Implicit in Mr. Jones' statement would be an

22 expectation what the overall cost of service is for

23 serving these customer classes, including the EDT, and

24 therefore based on his version of cost of service, you
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1 know, before various modifications are made, some of

2 which are pending as of today, that would influence

3 number of iterations.  I don't -- I don't dispute that

4 based on one static snapshot of the costs under one

5 set of assumptions that Mr. Jones would have

6 misrepresented the number of iterations, but it's not

7 a static situation.

8        Q.   Would you expect -- Let me withdraw that

9 question.  So let me rephrase.  Based on what Ameren

10 proposed in surrebuttal for its various cost

11 allocations, assuming all else being equal, and those

12 were accepted by the Commission, you don't dispute Mr.

13 Jones' characterization of the ten, four, and nine

14 iterations it would take to reach equalized EDT for

15 Rate Zone I, II and III?

16        A.   Assuming that you are accurately

17 representing his testimony and with the caveat that

18 Mr. Jones mentioned earlier, which is all else being

19 held equal, and that changes aren't made down the

20 road, I can accept his number of iterations are

21 correct.

22        Q.   Sure.  Correct.  Obviously, as you know,

23 there are -- there's subsequent rate cycles three

24 years from now which would be for those changes --
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1 those iterations to occur.  You've testified in a

2 number of proceedings for the ICC, correct?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   Do you remember testifying in Docket

5 07-0165, which would have been Ameren's rate design

6 proceeding after the 2006 rate case?

7        A.   May I ask a clarifying question?

8        Q.   Absolutely.

9        A.   Is that the case that happened at the same

10 time as the similar ComEd case, the rate design

11 investigation?

12        Q.   I don't recall, but I can give you the

13 testimony.  That might refresh your recollection.

14        A.   Okay.  May I ask another clarifying

15 question?

16        Q.   Sure.

17        A.   Is that the case in which the rate limiter

18 was first established?

19        Q.   The rate limiter, yes, that was the case it

20 was first established.

21        A.   Okay.  I was definitely involved in that

22 case.

23             MR. KENNEDY:  I'm showing you -- I'm

24 handing -- May I approach the witness?



167

1             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

2 BY MR. KENNEDY:

3        Q.   I'm handing the witness what I've marked as

4 AIC Cross Exhibit 5.  Just for purposes of

5 identification, what I've handed him is a copy of IIEC

6 Exhibit 1.0, Rebuttal Testimony of Mr. Robert R.

7 Stephens filed on behalf of IIEC July [sic] 1st, 2007,

8 in Docket 07-0165.  I'm not going to ask you to read

9 the whole thing, although you're welcome to review it.

10 I was going to direct you to certain parts of it.

11        A.   I'm afraid my car mates would kill me if I

12 took the time to read the whole thing.

13        Q.   Well, let's -- it's only 17 pages, but let

14 me skip to the point here.  If you could look at page

15 5.

16        A.   I'm there.

17        Q.   You anticipated my question.  Q and A

18 there, lines 98, to 104.  You're asked the question,

19 are there ever circumstances that might warrant a

20 departure from cost-based rate principles.  The answer

21 is, yes, there can be, but they are the exception, not

22 the rule.  The Commission should stick to the

23 establishment of cost-based rates to the fullest

24 extent possible.  To do otherwise sends improper price
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1 signals and is fundamentally unfair.  Any deviation

2 from a cost basis should be directly attributable to

3 events that provide compelling justifications for

4 temporary excursion from cost.  I didn't read the rest

5 of the Q and A though, the answer there, but those

6 sentences right there, do you still, Mr. Stephens,

7 generally agree with that principle?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   If I could ask you to turn to page 13 of

10 this same document, lines 281 to 284, would the

11 sentence stating, furthermore -- you write,

12 furthermore, to the extent the Commission departs from

13 its delivery service ratemaking principles to address

14 rate impacts, it should do so only for the most

15 compelling circumstances, as narrowly as possible, and

16 for the shortest possible period of time.

17             It's similar to the language you stated

18 before, and again I would ask you, do you still agree

19 with this principle that you enunciated in this case?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Do you recall another docket in the '07

22 year?  It would have been the Ameren '07 rate case.

23 The docket numbers are 07-0585 through 07-0590.

24        A.   Yes.



169

1        Q.   Okay.  I've handed the witness what I've

2 marked for identification as AIC Cross Exhibit 6.

3 What I've marked as AIC Cross Exhibit 6 is IIEC

4 Exhibit 1.0C, the Corrected Direct Testimony of Robert

5 R. Stephens submitted on behalf of IIEC on March 14th,

6 2008, for Docket Nos. 07-0585 through 07-0590.  This

7 was a general increase in electric service -- electric

8 delivery service rates that the AIC utilities filed in

9 2007.

10             Mr. Stephens, do you remember preparing and

11 submitting this testimony?

12        A.   I remember testifying in the case.  This

13 looks like it.

14        Q.   Could I ask you to turn to page -- the Q

15 and A that starts on page 16, lines 307 through lines

16 340.  Let me know when you've had a chance to read

17 that, Mr. Stephens.

18        A.   Just a few more seconds, please.

19        Q.   Oh, sure.

20        A.   Yeah, I've read it.

21        Q.   Starting with the sentence on line 314, you

22 state there, that after the previous rate case for

23 delivery service rates which was Docket 06-0070, DS-4

24 customers saw increases in excess of 200 percent.  Do
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1 you have any reason to dispute that number as you sit

2 here today that's actually what happened?

3        A.   I don't remember the case very well, but

4 no, I don't have any reason as I sit here.

5        Q.   This testimony as you alluded to earlier,

6 this is -- this is -- strike that.  In the second half

7 of the question, lines 332 and 340, you're proposing a

8 two-step elimination of subsidies by moving to cost of

9 service, correct?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   And in that case, quote, you called it a

12 reasonable rate moderation approach, if deemed

13 necessary, would be one that moves each class one-half

14 of the way to cost; i.e., it reduces but does not

15 fully eliminate rate subsidies provided, or received,

16 by each class, with movement to full cost of service

17 as soon as possible thereafter.  It goes on to say

18 that, quote, the timing of the second step could

19 either be predetermined in this case; example, two

20 years after rates take effect, or in the next DST

21 case, close quote.

22             As you sit here today, you're not disputing

23 that you made that proposal in that or offered that

24 recommendation proposal to the commissioners in that
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1 case, correct?

2        A.   I'm not sure what the circumstances were in

3 that case, but I don't disagree with your reading of

4 that excerpt.

5             MR. KENNEDY:  Give me one minute, your

6 Honor.  I may be done.

7                   That's all, Mr. Stephens.  I'll let

8 my esteemed counselor -- colleague, Mr. Jenkins, ask

9 some questions.

10                    CROSS-EXAMINATION

11 QUESTIONS BY MR. JENKINS:

12        Q.   Thank you.  Mr. Stephens, Alan Jenkins for

13 the Commercial Group.  Good to see you again.

14        A.   Good to see you.

15        Q.   Let's just start with AIC Cross Exhibit 5.

16             MR. KENNEDY:  Before you begin, I haven't

17 moved Cross Exhibit 5 and 6 into the record nor do I

18 intend to do that.  Just so it's clear.

19             MR. JENKINS:  Okay.

20             MR. KENNEDY:  You may --

21 BY MR. JENKINS:

22        Q.   Do you still have that?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   Okay.  And that is your testimony in Docket
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1 No. 07-0165, right?

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   And you were discussing a few minutes ago

4 that the Rate Limiter Credit and the origin in that

5 case.  And I believe the IIEC opposed the rate

6 limiter; is that correct?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   And on page 6, you talk about generally

9 that if the Commission should decide to deviate from

10 its ratemaking cost of service principles, should be

11 limited, and on lines 111 to 112, you mention the

12 Commission should specify a sunset date for any

13 transitional subsidies, correct?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   And with respect to the rate limiter then,

16 what we're talking about, was it your understanding

17 then that the Commission was creating the rate limiter

18 subsidy as a temporary device to deal with some -- as

19 counsel was asking you, some increases for grain

20 customers?

21        A.   It certainly was my recommendation, and I

22 believe that the Commission entered an order for the

23 system with what we asked.

24        Q.   And this case occurred six years ago; is
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1 that right?

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   All right.  Next let's look at the issue of

4 primary distribution line costs.  Is it correct to say

5 that in this proceeding you and Mr. Schonhoff have

6 agreed that primary distribution line costs should be

7 set based on the NCP method?

8        A.   Certainly in testimony we've agreed to

9 that.  I'm not sure what Mr. Schonhoff's position is

10 right this moment.

11        Q.   But he hasn't testified to anything other

12 than the NCP is the correct allocator, correct?

13        A.   That's correct.  Mr. Schonhoff made a very

14 compelling case that NCP was the proper way to go.

15        Q.   And just so we understand, why do you

16 believe it is the appropriate approach?

17        A.   Frankly, I thought all of the reasons that

18 Mr. Schonhoff went into that had to do with supported

19 industry literature, his explanation of the way the

20 delivery system is designed, his explanation of why

21 this is not a punishment on certain rate classes.  I'm

22 not even sure he had one or two other reasons.

23 Frankly I found them all correct, compelling, and

24 didn't really have a whole lot to add to them.  I mean
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1 he introduced this, made a compelling case in his

2 direct testimony, expanded on it, and made an even

3 better case in his rebuttal testimony, and then

4 touched on it in his surrebuttal.  I thought he did a

5 fine job.

6        Q.   He is a fine witness, isn't he.

7        A.   In this regard he did a nice job.

8        Q.   Do you have a copy of his surrebuttal

9 testimony?

10        A.   I do over at my chair.

11        Q.   In Ameren Exhibit 8.0, I'd point you to

12 page 16.

13        A.   Did you say page 16?

14        Q.   Yes, sir.

15        A.   I'm there.

16        Q.   If you could focus on line 338.

17        A.   Okay.

18        Q.   And he's discussing there -- Well, why

19 don't you read the question and answer there.

20        A.   Okay.  The question states, would AIC be

21 willing to accept a modified or hybrid allocation

22 method different from one proposed by AIC or Staff

23 thus far in this proceeding, in an attempt to maintain

24 proper cost causation principles and protect the
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1 remaining rate classes from the inappropriate cost

2 allocations associated with the CP method.  His answer

3 is, yes, but only if such modifications would be

4 limited to the DS-5 class.

5        Q.   Now, what did you understand from that

6 question and answer?

7             MR. KENNEDY:  I'm going to object.

8 Although I don't disagree with Mr. Jenkins'

9 characterization of witness's testimony is fine, I do

10 object to him cross-examining Mr. Stephens on

11 testimony that he has not seen in this case and asking

12 him what he thought Mr. Schonhoff meant in his

13 testimony.

14             MR. JENKINS:  Well, your Honor, generally

15 my observation in these proceedings is that in

16 surrebuttal from time to time the ALJs do allow some

17 lenience to witnesses to respond to new ideas that are

18 presented in surrebuttal.  In this case it's an

19 additional step, we have surrebuttal that takes one

20 position, and then we have a late-filed exhibit that

21 contradicts that testimony.  So obviously this witness

22 has had no opportunity to respond to either one.  I

23 think it's appropriate just to get his respective

24 perspective on it.
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1             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You may ask Mr. Stephens

2 about what he knows or understands was meant by Mr.

3 Schonhoff's testimony.  Clearly you can't ask him what

4 Mr. Schonhoff meant by his testimony.

5             MR. JENKINS:  Right.  I agree.

6        A.   Okay.  My understanding based on the

7 question is that Mr. Schonhoff believed the CP method

8 to be an inappropriate cost allocation method and that

9 he would accept a modified or hybrid allocation only

10 to the extent it modified the allocations of the DS-5

11 class from Ameren's proposal.

12 BY MR. JENKINS:

13        Q.   And on line 340 when it says you need to

14 protect the remaining classes from the inappropriate

15 cost allegations associated with the CP method.  Could

16 I direct your attention now to AIC Cross Exhibit 3.

17        A.   Okay.

18        Q.   Do you find that the description of the

19 modified primary line allocator in AIC Cross 3,

20 quote-unquote, protects the remaining rate classes

21 from inappropriate cost allocations associated with CP

22 method, end quote?

23        A.   No, I do not.

24        Q.   Why?
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1        A.   Although I've not had a chance to fully

2 evaluate this cross-examination exhibit on its face,

3 but note 3 indicates that for four of the six rate

4 classes, DS-1, DS-2, DS-3, and DS4, this proposed

5 method would use CP demands, which is the opposite of

6 what Mr. Schonhoff said was appropriate.  Therefore,

7 those rate classes are not being protected from

8 inappropriate rate allocations under this method shown

9 in AIC Cross Exhibit 3.

10             MR. LANNON:  Your Honor, at this point I'm

11 going to object on the basis that it's friendly cross

12 to the detriment of my client.

13             MR. DEARMONT:  Second that.

14             MR. KENNEDY:  I agree.  I agree Mr. -- Mr.

15 Jenkins' point there is some due weight given to

16 cross-examination on surrebuttal, but I don't think

17 that that allows two parties in the same position to

18 elicit cross -- you know, friendly cross from the

19 other party's witness.  It doesn't sound like

20 cross-examination to me.

21             MR. JENKINS:  Again I just -- Really the --

22 the only reason we're having this cross-examination is

23 because of the Company's decision to file a -- what it

24 says is a settlement that it reached with one party at
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1 a very late stage and introduce it into evidence when

2 no one has had an opportunity to cross.  This might be

3 one way to facilitate the deduction in this case here.

4             MR. LANNON:  Just so we're clear, we --

5 this is kind of technical, but we don't agree with the

6 word "settlement" at all, and we only enter into

7 universal settlement.

8             MR. JENKINS:  Okay.

9             MR. LANNON:  So this is one issue that we

10 agree with them on just so the record is clear on

11 that.  It wasn't characterized as a settlement.

12             MR. KENNEDY:  Well --

13             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I'm going to sustain the

14 objection.  I think we've discussed the possibility

15 that there may be an additional day of hearing or

16 something.  I think that the information that you're

17 seeking to elicit will be more efficiently elicited if

18 we have another hearing based upon, you know, Mr.

19 Stephens' own testimony or his analysis of IIEC Cross

20 Exhibit 3 or something.  I don't think this is a very

21 direct way to get the information.

22             MR. JENKINS:  By that do you mean that Mr.

23 Stephens would be available at that time as well?

24             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Well, this is up to the
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1 parties according to whether they want to have him

2 called, but I can see that there may be a need for it.

3 I don't -- I'm not saying that there is.  The parties

4 have to determine that, but I recognize the difficulty

5 we have here with some parties feeling that they've

6 been surprised with a major tactical change during the

7 hearing.

8 BY MR. JENKINS:

9        Q.   Okay.  Could I ask a clarifying question

10 about these -- what these numbers represent?  I'll ask

11 it.  If you want to object, fine.

12             On AIC Cross Exhibit 3, do you see the R --

13 there's a column with an RZ III Total, and under it,

14 let's just look at the first one, NCP Demand @primary

15 3,334,158, and I don't see any reference to what that

16 refers to.  Do you know what that refers to?

17             MR. KENNEDY:  I'm going to object just

18 because it's asking the witness about another

19 witness's -- There's no foundation for him to ask

20 questions of Mr. Stephens about the document during

21 cross-examination.

22             MR. JENKINS:  Same response as before.

23             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  The objection is

24 sustained.
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1             MR. JENKINS:  Thank you, Mr. Stephens.

2 Nothing further.

3             MR. KENNEDY:  I do have a clarifying point.

4 When -- Mr. Lannon, when you made your objection, were

5 you moving to strike the prior answer?

6             MR. LANNON:  No, I was not.

7             MR. KENNEDY:  Okay.

8             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Can we have a few

9 minutes?

10             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes.

11                   (WHEREIN, a break was taken.)

12             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Back on the record.

13                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION

14 QUESTIONS BY MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:

15        Q.   Mr. Stephens, are you familiar with any

16 circumstance in which the Commission authorized or

17 directed the movement to cost-based rates over the

18 period of time that incorporated eleven iterations?

19        A.   Yes, I'm aware of a number of cases where

20 the Commission moved towards cost-based rates over

21 several iterations, and the circumstance that comes to

22 mind for eleven was in the Commonwealth Edison case

23 with regard to one particular rate class, and we're

24 only a short ways into that eleven-iterations case.
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1 It had to do with the railroad class.  The Commission

2 determined in the 2010 docket that it would take a

3 tenth of the way toward cost of service and then go

4 the rest of the way over ten more steps.  So that

5 would be eleven steps all together.

6        Q.   Now, you were cross-examined with regard to

7 your positions in Docket 07-0165 and 07-0585, et al.

8 Do you think your position in this case is

9 inconsistent with the positions that you took in those

10 cases?

11        A.   No, I think it's entirely consistent.

12        Q.   Why?

13        A.   For example, the criteria that I stated

14 essentially in both of those cases was that deviations

15 from cost of service based rates should be done for

16 compelling circumstances, as slow as possible, should

17 be temporary in nature.  What I've proposed here is

18 based on a very compelling circumstance, which was a

19 sudden departure from allocation method of the

20 electric distribution taxes that was done in 09-0306

21 which had movement to full cost-based rates at that

22 time been made, it would have meant over 1,000 percent

23 increase for at least one large customer and several

24 hundred percent increases for several others.
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1             So that in my mind is a very compelling

2 circumstance, and the Commission apparently agreed,

3 not -- let me -- let me strike the Commission

4 apparently agreed part.  I would note that the

5 Commission adopted a rate moderation proposal in that

6 case that did not allow the 1,000 percent or several

7 hundred percent increase to occur.

8             The second part as narrowly as possible.

9 What I've proposed here is something that is only

10 applicable to one or more subclasses in all three

11 Ameren rate zones for whom the proposed increases are

12 the greatest, and it only provides a protection if the

13 cost of service study finds that their current rates

14 are sufficiently below cost.  It's frankly not

15 applicable to the vast majority of the rate subclasses

16 in the rate zones.  So it is narrowly focused.  And

17 then, finally, it's temporary in nature in that the 20

18 percent increase or 1.75 times the system average

19 increase that I've proposed definitely makes movement

20 toward cost of service, and over time we'll get there.

21 It's not a perpetual subsidy for all time.

22             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  That's all I have.

23             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Recross.

24                   RECROSS-EXAMINATION
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1 QUESTIONS BY MR. KENNEDY:

2        Q.   Yeah, one question, Mr. Stephens.  To the

3 issue of temporary, you know, what -- what someone

4 would think would be a temporary excursion from cost.

5 Later in the testimony you did refer to that criteria

6 as being the shortest possible period of time in lines

7 283 to 284.  Is it your position that what you're

8 proposing also satisfies that criteria?

9        A.   I think in this case because a 20 percent

10 increase annual is -- is an extraordinary change for

11 customers over time, it's about all that we can

12 reasonably expect this customer class to up each year,

13 so therefore, I think that is the shortest reasonable

14 period of time.

15        Q.   Even though as we acknowledged earlier

16 during cross-examination that after the 2000 -- the

17 results of the 2006 rate case some customers saw

18 increases of over 200 percent, so there is precedent

19 for the DS-4 class receiving more than a 20 percent

20 increase?

21             MR. ERIC ROBERTSON:  Can you speak up?  I'm

22 having trouble hearing you.  You're so soft in your

23 approach.

24             MR. KENNEDY:  Let me -- I try to be soft
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1 and gentle, Mr. Robertson.  Let me restate.  I mean

2 can you repeat his answer -- Did you catch my

3 question?

4             (WHEREIN, the requested portion of the

5 record was read by the Court Reporter.)

6        A.   I -- I don't remember the specifics, but I

7 remember we objected to the 200 percent increase as

8 well, and I don't recall if that was on a subclass or

9 full class or individual customer basis, but clearly

10 that was a large increase and larger than I think is

11 reasonable under rate moderation.  Furthermore, I

12 would note that that was not an annual increase.  That

13 was a one-time shot.

14             MR. KENNEDY:  No further questions.

15             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right then.  Are

16 there any objections to IIEC Exhibit 1.0 and 1.1, the

17 direct testimony of Mr. Stephens, or IIEC Exhibit

18 3.0C, the corrected rebuttal testimony of Mr.

19 Stephens, which is filed December 6, 2013, or IIEC

20 Exhibit 3.1 through 3.2 which were filed on November

21 27th, 2013?

22                   (No response.)

23             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Hearing none, those

24 exhibits are admitted into evidence.
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1                   Mr. Robertson, you went through, Mr.

2 Stephens identified certain corrections to his

3 testimony today.  Would you be filing an errata with

4 those corrections?

5             MR. RYAN ROBERTSON:  Yes, your Honor, we

6 will.

7             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.  I believe

8 that completes the testimony that we're going to have

9 today.

10             MR. KENNEDY:  Correct.

11             MR. DEARMONT:  Correct.

12             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Mr. Jenkins,

13 I had asked you about Commercial Group Cross Exhibit

14 1.  Would you file that electronically?

15             MR. JENKINS:  Yes.

16             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.  All right.

17 Then we have a concern -- Shall we go off the record

18 to discuss future scheduling?

19             MR. KENNEDY:  Yes, your Honor.

20             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.

21                   (WHEREIN, a discussion was held off.

22                    the record.)

23             JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Back on the

24 record.  We had a scheduling discussion regarding
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1 continuance of this evidentiary hearing to provide an

2 opportunity, if it's needed, for additional cross of

3 Mr. Schonhoff and possibly other witnesses.  I

4 understand counsel are going to let me know by noon on

5 Wednesday of next week, which is the 18th of December,

6 and we will continue with the hearing at 1 p.m. on

7 Thursday, December 17th -- or December 19th.  So with

8 that, I'll continue this matter to December 19th,

9 2013, at 1 p.m.

10                   (Whereupon the hearing was

11                    continued to December 19, 2013,

12                    at 1:00 p.m.)
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